Committee Agenda

Epping Forest
District Council

AREA PLANS SUBCOMMITTEE B
Wednesday, 8th February, 2006

Place: Civic Offices, Epping

Room: Council Chamber

Time: 7.30 pm

Democratic Services Gary Woodhall, Democratic Services Officer
Officer Tel: 01992 - 56 4470

email:gwoodhall@eppingforestdc.gov.uk
Members:
Councillors M Colling (Chairman), A Green (Vice-Chairman), R Glozier, Mrs A Grigg,

S Metcalfe, Mrs S Perry, Mrs P K Rush, D Stallan, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse and
J M Whitehouse

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE.

1. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING
SUBCOMMITTEES (Pages 5 - 6)

General advice to people attending the meeting is attached.
2. MINUTES (Pages 7 - 20)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee.
3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(Head of Research and Democratic Services) To declare interests in any item on this
agenda.



Area Plans Subcommittee B Wednesday, 8 February 2006

5.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive,
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted.

In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks' notice of non-urgent
items is required.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL (Pages 21 - 76)

(Head of Planning and Economic Development) To consider planning applications as
set out in the attached schedule

Background Papers: (i) Applications for determination — applications listed on the
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are
summarised on the schedule. (ii) Enforcement of Planning Control — the reports of
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control.

DELEGATED DECISIONS

(Head of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at
the Civic Offices, Epping.



Area Plans Subcommittee B Wednesday, 8 February 2006

8.

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information
as defined in the paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act indicated:

Agenda Exempt Information
Item No Subject Paragraph Number
Nil Nil Nil

To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the
consideration of the following items which are confidential under Section 100(A)(2) of
the Local Government Act 1972:

Agenda
Iltem No Subject
Nil Nil

Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require:

D) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the
press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest.

2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed
to exclude the public and press.

3 Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the
completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for
report rather than decision.

Background Papers: Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(@) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the
report is based; and

(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report does not
include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the
advice of any political advisor.

Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer
responsible for the item.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1

Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
Are the meetings open to the public?

Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public
excluded.

When and where is the meeting?

Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee. A map
showing the venue will be attached to the agenda.

Can | speak?

If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda.
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues.

Who can speak?

Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.

What can | say?

You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are
limited to three minutes and if you are not present by the time your item is considered, the
Subcommittee will determine the application in your absence.

Can | give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection?

Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to
the Planning Officer dealing with your application.

How are the applications considered?

The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers
presentations. The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3)
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either
the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should
the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they
are required to give their reasons for doing so.

The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District
Development Control Committee.

Further Information?

Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet “Your Choice, Your Voice’

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda Item 2

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMITTEE MINUTES

Committee:  Area Plans Subcommittee B Date: 11 January 2006

Place: Civic Offices, Epping Time: 7.30 -9.25 pm

Members M Colling (Chairman), A Green (Vice-Chairman), R Glozier, Mrs A Grigg,

Present: S Metcalfe, Mrs S Perry, Mrs P K Rush, D Stallan, C Whitbread,
Mrs J H Whitehouse and J M Whitehouse

Other

Councillors: (none)

Apologies: (none)

Officers B Land (Assistant Head of Planning and Economic Development) and

Present: G J Woodhall (Democratic Services Officer)

47. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings.

48. MINUTES
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2005 be taken as read
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

49, DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

@) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs S Perry,
C Whitbread and J M Whitehouse declared a personal interest in the following items
of the agenda, by virtue of being a member of Epping Town Council. The Councillors
had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the
meeting for the consideration of the applications and voting thereon:

. EPF/1839/05 — Forge Cottage, 28 Coopersale Street, Epping;

. EPF/1859/05 — Forge Cottage, 28 Coopersale Street, Epping;

o EPE/1840/05 — 76 Hemnall Street & BG Automotives, Half Moon Lane,
Epping;

. EPF/1887/05 — 15 Institute Road, Coopersale, Epping; and

. EPF/2136/05 — 9 Charles Street, Epping.

Page 7



Area Plans Subcommittee B 11 January 2006

50.

51.

52.

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs A Grigg
declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of being a
member of North Weald Parish Council. The Councillor had determined that her
interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of
the applications and voting thereon:

. EPF/1280/05 — 94-96 High Road, North Weald; and

. EPF/1860/05 — Former Blacksmith Arms, Woodside, North Weald.

(©) Pursuant to the Council’'s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor R Glozier
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being a
member of Theydon Bois Parish Council. The Councillor had determined that his
interest was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of
the application and voting thereon:

. EPF/1500/05 — Greys Farm, Off Green Glade, Theydon Bois.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission.
RESOLVED:

That the planning applications numbered 1 — 10 be determined as set out in
the attached schedule to these minutes.

DELEGATED DECISIONS
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the

Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices.

CHAIRMAN

Page 8



Item No: 1

Minute Item 51

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1839/05

SITE ADDRESS: Forge Cottage
28 Coopersale Street
Epping
Essex

PARISH: Epping

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Replace study with garage and replace garage with granny
flat.

DECISION: GRANT
CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finished shall be submitted for
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details.

3 The proposed extension shall only be used as ancillary accommodation for the
existing dwellinghouse and shall not be occupied as a unit separately from the
dwelling known as “Forge Cottage”

Item No: 2

APPLICATION No:

CAC/EPF/1859/05

SITE ADDRESS: Forge Cottage
28 Coopersale Street
Epping
Essex

PARISH: Epping

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL:

Conservation area consent for the demolition of the garage
and study.

DECISION:

GRANT

CONDITIONS:

Page 9




1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details.

Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/1840/05

SITE ADDRESS: 76 Hemnall Street and B G Automotives, Half Moon Lane
Epping

PARISH: Epping

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Demolition of No. 76 Hemnall Street and adjacent works,

extension to Vets centre and erection of 11 no. flats.

DECISION: REFUSED
CONDITIONS:

1 The proposed development by reason of its height and bulk would detract from the
street scene and appear overdominant in its surroundings contrary to policy BE1 of
the adopted Structure Plan and to policies DBE1 and 2 of the adopted Local Plan.

2 The Local Planning Authority is not satisfied that a largely residential development is
appropriate at this town centre location, nor necessary as enabling this
development, that results in a loss of employment opportunity contrary to policy
BIW4 of the adopted Structure Plan and policy E4 of the adopted Local Plan.

Item No: 4
APPLICATION No: EPF/1887/05
SITE ADDRESS: 15 Institute Road
Coopersale, Epping
Essex
CM16 7QY
PARISH: Epping
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Single storey side extensions and two storey rear extension.
DECISION: GRANT

PRggeld




The committee were informed of the receipt of an objection from the occupier of No. 2 St Albans
Road.
CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match
those of the existing building.

Item No: 5
APPLICATION No: EPF/2136/05
SITE ADDRESS: 9 Charles Street
Epping
Essex
CM16 7AU
PARISH: Epping
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Erection of car port with gates to front.
DECISION: GRANT
CONDITIONS:
1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of

three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The existing garage building in the rear garden of the property shall be demolished
and the materials removed from the site within one month of the new car port being
brought into use.

Item No: 6
APPLICATION No: EPF/1818/05
SITE ADDRESS: New Farm Cottage
New Farm Drive
Lambourne
PARISH: Lambourne
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Erection of front boundary fence.

Page 21




| DECISION: | GRANT
CONDITIONS:
1 Within three months of the date of this notice, the fence hereby permitted shall be

stained in a dark colour which shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority and shall be permanently maintained in that condition.

2 Within three months of the date of this notice, details of the landscaping of the site
showing planting in relation to the fence hereby approved shall be submitted in
writing for the approval of the Local Planning Authority, and shall be carried out
within three months of approval and be permanently retained as approved
thereafter.

If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed,
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another
tree, shrub or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be
planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives it written
consent to any variation.
Item No: 7
APPLICATION No: EPF/1926/05
SITE ADDRESS: Oak Lodge
New Farm Drive
Lambourne
Romford
Essex
RM4 1BT
PARISH: Lambourne
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Two storey side extension.
DECISION: GRANT
CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match
those of the existing building.

3 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface

materials for the driveway/access, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The agreed surface treatment shall be completed prior
to the first occupation of the development.

PRggel g




4 Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/1280/05

SITE ADDRESS: 94 - 96 High Road
North Weald Bassett
Epping
Essex

PARISH: North Weald

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Erection of 6 no. flats with associated car parking. (Revised
application)

DECISION: GRANT

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details.

3 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of

landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing.

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a
timetable for its implementation. If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand,
and in writing.

The statement must include details of all the means by which successful
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant
protection and aftercare. It must also include details of the supervision of the
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority.

The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and

Page I3




statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to
any variation.

Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance
works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the
presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as
below. Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations,
appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary
maintenance works adopted.

Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the
investigation shall be agreed in writing with the LPA and the completed phase 1
investigation shall be submitted to the LPA upon completion for approval.

Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a
protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA before
commencing the study and the completed phase 2 investigation with remediation
proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA prior to any remediation
works being carried out.

Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance
programme shall be submitted to the LPA for approval prior to first occupation of the
completed development.

Prior to the first occupation of the flats hereby approved the access and parking
areas, including motorcycle and cycle facilities shall be completed in accordance
with the approved drawing No. 1501:2 Rev A. and thereafter retained.

Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface
materials for the access and parking areas, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed surface treatment shall be
completed prior to the first occupation of the development.

Compensatory flood storage works shall be carried out in accordance with details
which shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority before development commences.

Item No: 9

APPLICATION No:

EPF/1860/05

SITE ADDRESS:

Former Blacksmiths Arms
Woodside

North Weald Bassett
Epping

Essex

CM16 6LH

PARISH:

North Weald

APPLICANT:

Kings Oak North London

PRggel8




DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Demolition of existing public house and erection of 20 no.

houses, access, parking and landscaping.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT

CONDITIONS:

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details.

Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and
maintained in the agreed positions.

Details of foul and surface water disposal shall be submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority before any work commences and the development shall be
implemented in accordance with such agreed details.

Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site.

Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance
works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the
presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as
below. Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations,
appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary
maintenance works adopted.

Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the
investigation shall be agreed in writing with the LPA and the completed phase 1
investigation shall be submitted to the LPA upon completion for approval.

Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a
protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA before
commencing the study and the completed phase 2 investigation with remediation
proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA prior to any remediation
works being carried out.

Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance
programme shall be submitted to the LPA for approval prior to first occupation of the
completed development.

A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning

Authority prior to commencement of development. The assessment shall include
calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm detention using

Page 95




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Windes or other similar programme. The approved measures shall be undertaken
prior to the first occupation of the building hereby approved and shall e adequately
maintained.

Prior to commencement of the development a full noise survey should be carried out
to establish which noise category the proposed plots fall into with regard to PPG24.
Following the survey, a scheme for protecting the proposed new dwellings from
noise, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority for
any dwellings, gardens and recreation areas that fall into NEC B and C or above as
detailed in PPG24. All works, which form part of the scheme, shall be completed
before any of the proposed residential development is occupied.

Prior to the premises being brought into use for the purpose hereby permitted, a
scheme providing for the adequate storage of refuse from this use shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be
carried out and thereafter retained at all times.

Hours of use of noisy equipment, demolition, noisy construction and deliveries
should be restricted to between:

0730 - 18.30 hours Monday to Friday
0800 - 1300 hours Saturday
No work on Sunday or Bank Holidays

No bonfires should occur at any time on the site for the disposal of waste material.

Prior to any demolition on site a scheme for dealing with dust suppression shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter
any demolition work shall be carried out in accordance with such scheme.

The first 6m of any private access as measured from the highway boundary shall be
treated with an approved bond material to prevent any loose material from entering
the highway.

Pedestrian visibility splays of 1.5m x 1.5m as measured from the back of footpath
shall be provided either side of the accesses with no obstruction above 600mm
within the area of splays.

Driver to driver visibility splays shall be kept clear of any obstruction at all times.

Prior to the commencement of any development on site a scheme for street lighting
along the frontage of the development to an adoptable standard shall be provided
and such a scheme shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and
thereafter the scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the agreed
particulars.

The development authorised by this permission shall not begin until the Local
Planning Authority has approved in writing a full scheme of works for the provision of
a new footway from the existing footway east of High Road on the south side of
Woodside, plus a pedestrian link on the south side of Woodside at an agreed point
where a tactile pedestrian crossing by dropped kerbs shall be constructed. No
occupation of any part of the site shall take place until those works have been
completed in accordance with the Local Planning Authorities approval and have

Page 16



18

19

20

been certified in writing as complete by or on behalf of the Local Planning Authority.
At no time shall gates be erected at any vehicular access onto the highway.

No development shall take place on site, including site clearance, tree works,
demolition, storage of materials or other preparatory work, until all details relevant to
the retention and protection of trees, hereafter called the Arboricultural Method
Statement, have been submitted to the LPA and approved in writing. Thereafter the
development shall be undertaken only in accordance with the approved details,
unless the LPA has given its prior written consent to and variation.

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall show the areas which are designated for
the protection of trees, shrubs and hedges, hereafter referred to as Protection
Zones. Unless otherwise agreed, the Protection Zones will be fenced, in
accordance with the British Standard Guide for Trees in Relation to Construction
(BS.5837: 2005) and no access will be permitted for any development operation.

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall also include all other relevant details,
such as changes of level, methods of demolition and construction, the materials,
design and levels of roads, footpaths, parking areas and of foundations, walls and
fences. It shall also include the control of potentially harmful operations, such as
burning, the storage, handling, and mixing of materials, and the movement of people
or machinery across the site, where these are within 10m of any designated
Protection Zone.

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall also indicate the specification and
timetable of any tree works, which shall be in accordance with the British Standard
Recommendations for Tree Works (BS.3998: 1989).

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include provision for the supervision and
inspection of the tree protection measures. The fencing, or other protection which is
part of the approved Statement shall not be moved or removed, temporarily or
otherwise, until all works, including external works have been completed and all
equipment, machinery and surplus materials removed from the site, unless the prior
approval of the Local Planning Authority has been given in writing.

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until all details relevant to the implementation of hard and soft landscape works and
tree planting, hereafter called the Landscape Method Statement, have been
submitted to the LPA, and the development shall not commence until the Landscape
Method Statement has been approved by the LPA in writing. All landscape works
shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details, unless the LPA has
given its prior written consent to any variation.

The Landscape Method Statement shall include as appropriate, protection of the
planting areas, where appropriate by fencing, during construction; preparation of the
whole planting environment, particularly to provide adequate drainage; and the
provision which is to be made for weed control, plant handling and protection,
watering, mulching, and the staking, tying and protection of trees. The Landscape
Method Statement shall also normally include provision for maintenance for the
period of establishment, including weeding, watering and formative pruning, and the
removal of stakes and ties. Provision shall be made for replacement of any plant,
including replacements, that are removed, are uprooted, or which die or fail to thrive,

Page 11



21

22

23

for a period of five years from their planting, in the first available season and at the
same place, with an equivalent plant, unless the LPA has given its prior written
consent to any variation.

All hard and soft landscape works shall be completed prior to the occupation or use
of any part of the development, unless the LPA has given its prior written consent to
a programme of implementation. The hard and soft landscape works, including tree
planting, shall be carried out strictly in accordance with any approved timetable.

The Landscape Method Statement shall state the provision which is to be made for
supervision of the full programme of works, including site preparation, planting,
subsequent management and replacement of failed plants.

Before the occupation or use of any phase or part of the development, whichever is
the soonest, a Landscape Management Plan (LMP) shall be submitted to and
approved by the LPA.

The LMP shall contain a statement of the long-term aims and objectives covering all
elements of the implementation of the agreed landscape scheme and full details of
all management and establishment operations over a five-year period, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. It shall also include details of the relevant
management, and supervisory responsibilities.

The LMP shall also include provision for a review to be undertaken before the end of
the five year period. A revised LMP shall be submitted for the agreement of the LPA
before five years has expired. The revised details shall make similar provisions for
the long term maintenance and management of the landscape scheme. The revised
scheme shall also make provision for revision and updating.

The provisions of the LMP, and subsequent revisions shall be adhered to and any
variation shall have been agreed beforehand in writing by the LPA. No trees,
shrubs, hedges or other plants shall be removed for the duration of the Landscape
Management Scheme or it revisions, without the prior written approval of the LPA.
Any trees, shrubs, hedges or other plants being so removed shall be replaced in the
first available planting season by an equivalent replacement or replacements to the
satisfaction of the LPA. Management of the landscape scheme in accordance with
the LMP or their agreed revisions shall not cease before the duration of the use of
the development unless agreed in writing by the LPA.

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of five years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The schedule shall include details of the arrangements for
its implementation. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved schedule.

A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to commencement of development. The assessment shall include
calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm detention using
Windes or other similar programme. The approved measures shall be undertaken
prior to the first occupation of the building hereby approved and shall e adequately
maintained.

Page 18



Item No: 10

APPLICATION No: EPF/1500/05

SITE ADDRESS: Greys Farm

Off Green Glade
Theydon Bois

PARISH:

Theydon Bois

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Erection of agricultural workers dwelling.

DECISION: GRANT
CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 The occupation of the dwelling hereby approved shall be limited to a person solely
or mainly working, or last working, in the locality in agriculture or in forestry, or a
widow or widower of such a person, and to any resident dependants.

3 The farmhouse shall not be subdivided from its currently associated holdings.

4 On or before the expiration of 28 days from the date of the first occupation of the
new dwelling, the caravan at present located at the farm, and any associated base,
dwarf wall or ancillary works shall be removed, and the land shall thereafter cease to
be used for the stationing of a caravan.

5 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details.

6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of
Part 1, Class A, shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local
Planning Authority.

7 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of

landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing.

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a
timetable for its implementation. If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand,
and in writing.

Page 19




The statement must include details of all the means by which successful
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant
protection and aftercare. It must also include details of the supervision of the
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority.

The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and

statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to
any variation.

Page 20



8 February 2006

Agenda Iltem 6

AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘B’

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES

ITEM | REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER PAGE
RECOMMENDATION

1. EPF/1525/05 Coopersale Hall School, Flux's Grant 23
Lane, Epping

2. EPF/1526/05 Coopersale Hall School, Flux’'s Grant 30
Lane, Epping

3. EPF/1857/05 Barn at Creeds Farm, Bury Lane, Refuse 32
Epping

4, EPF/1869/05 Land adjacent lvy Cottage, Grant 39
Coppice Row, Theydon Bois

5. EPF/2030/05 Wansfell College, 30 Piercing Grant 44
Hill, Theydon Bois

6. EPF/2031/05 Former Caretaker’'s House, Grant 61
Wansfell College, 30A Piercing
Hill, Theydon Bois

7. EPF/2106/05 2 Morgan Crescent, Theydon Grant 73
Bois

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/1525/05

SITE ADDRESS: Coopersale Hall School
Flux's Lane
Epping
Essex

PARISH: Epping

APPLICANT: Coopersale Hall School

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Side and rear extensions to provide additional classrooms and
erection of new classroom block to replace existing block and
enlargement of existing car park.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details.

3 Details of the design of all windows in the extensions and detached building hereby
approved shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to the
commencement of the development. The development shall be completed in
accordance with the approved details and thereafter all windows in the extensions
and detached building shall accord with the approved details.

4 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree

protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing.

The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005). It must also specify any other means needed to
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development,
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly.

The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA.

The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout

the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior
written consent to any variation.

Page 23




5 The development shall not be commenced until a travel plan has been submitted to
and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The travel plan shall be implemented
prior to the first occupation of the extensions and detached building hereby
approved.

6 The extensions and detached building hereby approved shall not be occupied until
details of new and improved pedestrian facilities in Flux's Lane and at the Flux's
Lane/Stewards Green Road/Brook Road/Bower Hill junctions have been provided in
accordance with details approved by the Local Planning Authority.

7 The extensions and detached building hereby approved shall not be occupied until
the two bus stops nearest the junction of Flux's Lane with Bower Hill, Brook Road
and Stewards Green Road are modified to meet the current Essex County Council
standards in accordance with details approved by the Local Planning Authority.

8 The extensions and detached building hereby approved shall not be occupied until
new and improved pedestrian facilities along the school access road from Flux's
Lane to the school grounds have been provided in accordance with details approved
by the Local Planning Authority.

9 Space shall be provided within the proposal site to accommodate the parking,
loading, unloading and turning of all vehicles visiting the site, clear of the highway
and properly laid out and such space shall be maintained thereafter free of any
impediment to its designated use.

Description of Proposal:

It is proposed to erect a two-storey extension to an existing single storey flat roofed extension to
the school and erect a single storey extension to infill a recessed area of the existing single storey
extension to the school. It is also proposed to replace a detached single-storey classroom block
near the entrance to the school with a part single, part two-storey classroom block and to enlarge
the existing school car park.

When originally submitted it was understood the proposal included widening a 20m length of Flux’s
Lane but the applicants have since clarified that was not part of the proposal and was only
mentioned as a possible future proposal.

The proposed two-storey extension would provide 4 additional classrooms together with toilet
facilities to the eastern end of the existing single storey addition. It would be of the same width,
projecting 7m beyond the eastern flank. It would have a pitched roof 2.2m higher than the original
addition with the base of the extension below that of the original addition.

The two-storey extension would be largely finished in facing brick but the first 1.5m adjoining the
existing extension would be glazed. The two slopes of the pitched roof would be off-set at different
heights, the lower being that over the glazed section.

The infill extension would be the same height as the existing extension and would be accessed
from within the existing extension.

The replacement classroom block would have a roughly T shaped footprint and be of traditional
design with low hipped roofs finished in slate. External walls would have a painted render finish.
The two-storey element would be that nearest the school entrance. The proposed building would
provide 4 classrooms and toilet facilities while the existing block provides two classrooms.

Page 24



The enlargement to the school car park would be to the southeast end of the existing car park. It
would increase the area of the car park by about one third and be shingle surfaced to match the
existing surface. It would be situated on sloping land below the level of the original school building
30m to the north. Existing planting already screens that area from the school and it is proposed to
add to it. It is not proposed to change the levels of the proposed parking area.

Description of Site:

The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt and Coopersale Hall School is a listed building. A
separate application for listed building consent to carry out the works has also been submitted and
this is the subject of a separate report.

The site is bounded by residential properties to the north. To the south and east the land falls
away from the existing school buildings. To the south the land is initially open, including a soft
surfaced play area. Approximately 50m beyond the south elevation of the building there is a
formal garden dominated by mature trees. There is a sloping grassed area immediately to the
east of the existing single storey addition to the school beyond which is a hard surfaced play
arealtennis court enclosed by 3m high wire mesh fencing with a densely planted tree and bushes
to the east. The land east of the hard play area/tennis court is used as a small industrial estate
with businesses accommodated in a converted single storey building and the estate screened from
the south by robust tree planting. Immediately to the south of the area where it is proposed to
erect the two-storey extension are densely planted large bushes, approximately the height of the
existing extension.

The classroom block that would be replaced is not listed in its own right but is a building within the
curtilage of a listed building. It is situated 35m northwest of the original school building and 30m
southwest of the school entrance. To the west and southwest is a tree belt, beyond which is a
field in the schools ownership. To the east is a 30m wide gravel surfaced drive/turning area
beyond which are Bakers Cottage and Orchard Cottage. Bakers Cottage does not form part of the
school but Orchard cottage does

Relevant History:

LB/EPF/31/85 — Demolition of first floor link between Coopersale Hall and Orchard Cottages.
Approved 22.07.85.

LB/EPF/71/88 — Alterations in connection with change of use to educational establishment.
Approved 11.04.89.

EPF/1220/88 — Change of use to educational establishment. Approved 11.04.89.

LB/EPF/100/89 — Alterations and extension to provide classrooms, toilets and kitchen. Approved
05.03.90.

EPF/1766/89 — Alterations and extension to provide classrooms, toilets and kitchen. Approved
05.03.90.

EPF/653/04 — Erection of first floor rear and two storey rear extensions to provide additional
classrooms. Refused 20.05.04.

LB/EPF/654/04 — Corresponding application for listed building consent in respect of application
EPF/653/04. Refused 20.05.04.

EPF/1516/04 — Erection of first floor rear and two storey rear extensions to provide additional
classrooms. Refused 05.11.04.

LB/EPF/1515/04 — Corresponding application for listed building consent in respect of application
EPF/653/04. Refused 05.11.04.

Page 25



Policies Applied:

Structure Plan:

C2 — Development within the Metropolitan Green Belt
CS4 — Sustainable new development

HC3 — Protection of listed buildings

Local Plan:

GB2 - Development in the Green Belt

GB9 - Extension of non-residential buildings in the Green Belt
HC10 — Works to listed buildings

HC12 — Works that affect the setting of a listed building

DBE1 — New buildings

DBE4 — Design of new buildings in the Green Belt

LL2 — Development in the countryside

T17 — Traffic generation and highway safety

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues to be considered in this case are the appropriateness of the development in the
Green Belt and impact on the safe and free flow of traffic on adjacent roads.

Appropriateness in Green Belt

The fundamental aim of Green Belt Policy is to keep land permanently open and in this case the
extensions would result in an intensification of a use that is unrelated to the purposes or land use
objectives of the Green Belt.

The proposed two-storey extension would marginally exceed the height of existing buildings but it
is considered that this alone would not be sufficient to exacerbate the impact of the school
buildings as a whole on the open character of the Green Belt. When seen from the east the
extension would add interest and variety to the existing extension to the school that terminates in a
blank brick wall of no interest. When seen from the north or south the extension would appear as
a clear stop to the existing extension and due to its sympathetic design would result in an
improved appearance to the school building. The main vantage point from beyond the immediate
vicinity of the building would be from the first floors of Nos. 1 and 2 Coopersale Hall Farm
Cottages and Orchard Cottage located to the north and northwest from. From those points views
of the addition would be mainly of the roof of the extension which is considered to be of much
greater interest than that of the existing addition but little higher overall. The cumulative impact of
the extension would be to increase the bulk of additions to the school but that increase in bulk
would be overcome by the improvement in the appearance of the school buildings as a whole.
The two-storey extension is therefore inappropriate development in the Green Belt but its positive
impact on the character and appearance of the listed building is significant and considered to
amount to very special circumstances sufficient to overcome the harm caused by
inappropriateness.

The single-storey infill addition is a minor addition of no consequence in Green Belt and design
terms.

The replacement classroom block is also inappropriate development in the Green Belt that should

also only be permitted if very special circumstances sufficient to overcome the harm caused by
inappropriateness exist. The proposal has arisen following the refusal of two previous proposals

Page 26



for much larger two-storey additions to the school and is an attempt to overcome the previous
reasons for refusal by spreading the visual impact of the new classrooms across the school.

The currently proposed additions and replacement classroom block are intended to provide a
secondary school facility at the school. The applicant has provided evidence to indicate that there
is a high demand for the classroom facility that the overall proposal would provide. Information
has previously been provided indicating that the future viability of the school would be assisted by
the extensions because many pupils are now transferred to larger schools before completing the
final year at Coopersale Hall School. This appears to be in order to secure a secondary school
place at such schools. The applicant does not claim the future viability of the school is threatened
by this situation however it is indicated that the provision of additional secondary school facilities in
the locality would help meet a shortfall in supply. No compelling evidence of these assertions has
been provided but even if it were it is considered that the contribution the additions would make to
the supply of secondary education is not a matter of sufficient weight to amount to very special
circumstances that justify making an exception to Green Belt policy.

In terms of design, the replacement classroom block would relate well to the listed building and
other neighbouring buildings. Furthermore, views of it from Flux’s Lane and open land to the west
would be negligible due to its position off a line of sight from Flux’s Lane and due to the robust
mature tree belt that wraps around the area for the building. Because of the positive design
impact, greatly restricted views of the site and since the only realistic prospect of securing the
enhancement of the listed building is on the basis of the proposal as a whole it is considered that
in this particular case very special circumstances that justify making an exception to Green Belt
policy exist.

Traffic and Impact on Neighbours

Neighbours have raised highways issues as grounds for resisting the development. Essex County
Council has considered the highways implications of the proposal and advise as follows:

“No occupation of the development shall take place until such time as the following have been
provided or completed to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority:

¢ A school travel plan

+ New and improved pedestrian facilities in Flux’s Lane and at the Flux’s Lane/Stewards Green
Road and Stewards Green Road/Brook Road/Bower Hill junctions (details to be agreed with
the Highway Authority)

¢ The bringing up to current Essex County Council standards of the bus stops located in the
vicinity of the proposal site (details to be agreed with the Highway Authority)

+ New and improved pedestrian facilities along the school access road from Flux’s Lane to the
school grounds (details to be agreed with the Highway Authority)

¢ Space shall be provided within the proposal site to accommodate the parking, loading,
unloading and turning of all vehicles visiting the site, clear of the highway and properly laid out
and such space shall be maintained thereafter free of any impediment to its designated use,
further, in order to allow all vehicles to enter and leave the highway in forward gear.”

The applicants have verbally indicated they accept the conditions. These matters can be secured
through the imposition of suitable conditions on any consent granted.

Conclusion

The proposed extensions are inappropriate development within the Metropolitan Green Belt and
but very special circumstances that could justify the development exist. Accordingly, the proposal
complies with adopted planning policy and planning permission could be granted.

Page 27



SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS

EPPING TOWN COUNCIL — “Committee objected to this application on the basis that the highway
access is inadequate. The widening of part of Flux’s Lane is unlikely to eradicate the problems
with the junction and elsewhere on the site, and the greater numbers of users of this access are
likely to cause considerable problems. The development is also within the green belt and
therefore is felt to be contrary to Policies GB2, GB9 and DBE4 of the adopted Local Plan.”

NEIGHBOURS — The occupiers of 32 properties in the locality have raised objection primarily of
the grounds that the extensions are an intensification of use that would exacerbate existing traffic
flow and parking difficulties, contribute to air pollution and be harmful to road safety. Objection is
also raised on the grounds that the development is inappropriate in the Green Belt and that it
would result in excessive overlooking of neighbouring residential properties and the intensification
of the use would lead to more noise from children. Objection was also raised in relation to the
widening of Flux’s Lane but the applicant has clarified that does not form part of the proposal.

An occupier of one property in the locality has written in support of the proposal stating “the
Council has a duty of care towards encouraging the success of all schools on the locality”. A
petition signed by 28 people has also been received in support of the development.

In addition, the application was submitted with 36 letters of support and a petition signed by 12
people in support of the development.

Page 28



The matenial contained i this plot has been reproduced
from an Crdnance Survey mep with the permission of the

GonfioBze of Her Magesty's Slabomery. (¢} Coown Cogyiight.

Unautharized repreduction imfinges Crown Capytight and
ray lead to presecution o clll procesdings,
EFDC licernse Mo, 100018634

ltem Nos:
Scale: 1:2500

Page 29



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/1526/05

SITE ADDRESS: Coopersale Hall School
Flux's Lane
Epping Town
Epping
Essex

PARISH: Epping

APPLICANT: Coopersale Hall School

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Grade Il Listed building application for extensions to provide
additional classrooms and erection of new classrooms block
to replace existing car park improvement.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT

CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of

three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details.

3 Details of the design of all windows in the extensions and detached building hereby
approved shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to the
commencement of the development. The development shall be completed in
accordance with the approved details and thereafter all windows in the extensions
and detached building shall accord with the approved details.

Description of Proposal:

This is the concurrent listed building consent application for the works described in the previous
item.

Description of Site:

Coopersale Hall is a late 18" /early19th century two storey house with later additions and possibly
an earlier core. It has plastered walls and grey slate roof of two ranges. Windows are vertical
sliding sashes with horns. To the east are three distinct single storey additions, the first serving as
a link to the taller second that also has plastered walls and a roof hidden behind a parapet. Five
large paned sashes with semi-circular fanlight above and a small paned French window with large
fanlight over dominate the south elevation. The third and most recent extension is to the east flank
of the second easterly addition. It is a brick build structure with 4 bays of casement windows and
recessed section in the north elevation that incorporates a disabled access ramp.

Page 30




Policies Applied:

Structure Plan:
HC3 — Protection of listed buildings

Local Plan:

HC10 — Works to listed buildings
DBE1 — New buildings

Issues and Considerations:

The main issue to be considered in this case is the impact of the extension on the special historic
or architectural character of Coopersale Hall.

The proposed two-storey extension would marginally exceed the height of existing buildings. It
would have a contrasting and much lighter design than the heavy brick design of the earlier
extension it would be built off. It is considered the proposed addition would add interest and
variety to the existing extension to the school that terminates in a blank brick wall of no interest.
When seen from the north or south the extension would appear as a clear stop to the existing
extension and due to its sympathetic design would result in an improved appearance to the school
building.

The single-storey infill addition is a minor addition of no consequence in design terms.

Conclusion

The proposed extensions to Coopersale Hall would preserve and enhance the special historic and
architectural character of Coopersale Hall. Accordingly the proposal accords with adopted
planning policy and listed building consent could be granted subject to appropriate conditions.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

See the previous item, though none of the representations directly concern the listed character of
the existing building.

Page 31



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/1857/05
SITE ADDRESS: Barn at Creeds Farm
Bury Lane
Epping
Essex
CM16 5HE
PARISH: Epping
APPLICANT: Mr H Pegrum
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Change of use to B1 (business) use with associated parking
and landscaping. (Revised application)
RECOMMENDED DECISION: REFUSE
REASONS:
1 The building, the subject of the application is considered out of keeping with its

Update

surroundings by way of form bulk and general design, and additionally the proposed
use will result in significant on site parking which will be harmful to the openness and
to the character and amenity of the Green Belt. The proposal is therefore
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and contrary to Policy C12 of the Essex
and Southend on Sea Replacement Structure Plan and policies GB2 and GB8 of the
adopted Local Plan.

The parking of vehicles at the site in connection with the proposed use will have an
adverse impact on the character and visual amenity of the adjacent Conservation
Area and the setting of the adjacent listed building contrary to policy HC2 of the
Essex and Southend on Sea Replacement Structure Plan and Policies HC6 and
HC12 of the adopted Local Plan.

The movement of vehicles within the site and loading and unloading in connection
with the proposed use are likely to create unacceptable levels of disturbance to the
nearest residential properties contrary to policy RP5 of the adopted Local Plan.

The committee will recall that this application was deferred from the Area Sub Committee of 7
December to enable the applicants to address issues relating to the impact of the proposal on the
neighbouring properties.

The applicant has subsequently submitted a revised layout scheme. This shows the main doors at
the front of the building are to be sealed with the insertion of a personnel door only in the front. An
area of soft landscaping is proposed immediately to the front of the building to prevent vehicular
activity in this area. Parking is moved to the side of the building and the main entrance will be
moved to the rear.

Page 32




Additionally the applicants have agreed a willingness to accept the following restrictions:
1. No extensions to the building.
2. Hours of operation restricted to 08.00 —18.00 Monday to Friday and 09.00 — 13.00
Saturdays.
A scheme of hard and soft landscaping to be agreed prior to the use of the building for B1
use.
Details of kerb radii/surfacing /parking spaces to be agreed, prior to use.
No gates or additional external lighting to be erected without consent.
No open storage and no external working.
Any scheme of advertising is to be submitted to and agreed by the Council.
A limitation of the amount of parking spaces for passenger’s cars to be 6.
As shown on the amended drawings, no parking or unloading is to take place between the
side entrance and the northeastern elevation
10. Withdrawal of permitted change rights to B8 use.

w

©CENOOA

The applicants consider that these matters address the reasons for refusal that were put forward
at the previous meeting.

The committee is asked to give further consideration to these proposals in the light of the
additional information and revisions. Officers are still concerned that this is an unattractive and

bulky building so close to residential properties and the Conservation Area and its retention and
conversion for a new use may not be felt to be appropriate.

The original report is reproduced in full below.

Description of Proposal:

Change of use of existing agricultural building to B1 business use, with associated parking and
landscaping. The application is speculative, with no end user proposed. A Bl use is defined as a
use as an office or for research and development or any industrial process, which can be carried
out in a residential area without detriment to the amenity of that area by reason of noise, vibration,
smell, smoke, dust, fumes, ash, soot or grit. The proposal includes the provision of a parking area
to the rear of the building and the planting of hedges to the rear and side boundaries.

Description of Site:

The site is located on the western side of Bury Lane immediately adjacent to recently converted
cottages at Creeds Farm. Creeds Farm House, to the south is a Grade Il listed building. There is
open agricultural land to the north and east and there are residential properties on the opposite
side of the road in Highfield Green. The building the subject of the application is a large utilitarian
farm building of blockwork and corrugated metal.

Relevant History:

An application for change of use to B8 storage and B1 business use was refused in 1997 and
dismissed on appeal.
An application submitted earlier this year for change of use to B1 and B8 was withdrawn.

Page 33



Policies Applied:

Structure plan policies:

CS12 protecting the natural and built environment.
CS3 Encouraging Economic Success.

CS4 sustainable New Development.

C2 development within the Green Belt.

HC2 Conservation Areas.

BIW1 Employment Land Provision

BIW5 Business Location.

T12 vehicle parking.

Local Plan Policies:

GB2 Green Belt.

GB8 Change of use of buildings.

HC6 development affecting conservation areas

HC12 development affecting the setting of a listed building.
RPS5 development likely to cause a nuisance.

LL2, LL3 and LL11 relating to landscaping.

T14 and T17 relating to parking and highway issues.

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues in determining this application are: impact on the Green Belt, impact on the
conservation area and setting of the listed building, highway and traffic implications, impact on
residential amenity of surrounding residents and sustainability issues.

Some of these issues were considered at the time of the appeal into the refusal of consent for B1
and B8 uses back in 1998. At that time the appeal inspector concluded that commercial vehicles
parking on the site would be visually intrusive and have a materially greater impact than the
present use on the openness of the Green Belt. He concluded therefore that the development was
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and by definition harmful. Additionally the inspector
concluded that the use would result in increased noise and disturbance to local residents and the
visual impact of the parking would be detrimental to the appearance of the Bell Common
Conservation Area and the setting of the listed building at Creeds Farm. The question therefore is
whether the removal of the B8 element of the proposal and the addition of hedging, taken together
with the changes that have taken place at Creeds Farm, mean that these reasons for refusal are
no longer valid.

Green Belt.

The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt. The reuse of existing buildings within the Green
Belt can be appropriate. Policy GB8 of the adopted Local Plan allows for the re use of permanent
and substantial buildings, in keeping with their surroundings by way of form, bulk and general
design for, among other things business use where this would not involve open storage or a
significant amount of vehicle parking, or traffic generation that would be detrimental to the
character or amenities of the countryside.

The building the subject of the application is clearly of permanent and substantial construction. It
is a typical agricultural building, which in this setting close to residential properties and adjacent to
open agricultural land is out of keeping with its surroundings. The proposed use will result
inevitably in some on site parking of cars and commercial vehicles, some of which may be large
and there is no way of controlling the type of vehicles visiting the site. Hedging may, if well
maintained and allowed to grow, reduce the visual impact of the parking to some extent but,
clearly there will still be an impact on openness. There is no intention for there to be any open

Page 34



storage in connection with the use and this can be controlled by condition. As the building is not in
keeping with its surroundings and openness will be adversely affected it is considered that the
development is inappropriate in the Green Belt.

Conservation Area and Setting of the Listed building.

The site itself is not within the Conservation Area but it abuts the northern boundary. The Creeds
Farm House is listed and the recently converted farm buildings adjacent to the site are curtilage
listed. The application building, while unattractive is obviously a current feature and the question
is whether the new use will have an adverse impact on the character of the conservation area or
the setting of the listed building. No alterations to the building are proposed at this time and a
condition can be applied to prevent alterations without a further application. It is not considered
that the alternative use would in itself have an adverse impact on the character of the area, but the
fact remains that additional parking in connection with the use will have a visual impact, which as
the inspector at the previous appeal concluded would have an adverse impact on the
Conservation Area and the setting of the listed building. Since the last appeal the buildings
nearest to the application site have been converted to residential use and garaging has been
erected, these alterations were seen as maintaining the setting of the listed building, and they
removed a restaurant and farm shop use. The introduction of additional parking on the application
site, even with landscaping provision, is still considered likely to have an adverse impact on the
visual amenity of the area.

Highway and Traffic Implications.

Essex County Council’'s Highways have considered the proposal and have concluded that subject
to improvements to the access (in terms of the access radii and surfacing) the scheme does not
pose a threat to highway safety. Adequate space is provided for car parking within the site.
Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposal is likely to result in an increase in traffic this is not in
itself a reason for refusal, and was not a factor in the dismissal of the last appeal.

Residential Amenity.

The site lies adjacent to residential properties and the access is directly opposite houses in
Highfield Green, care must therefore be taken that the proposed use will not cause harm to
residential amenity. The proposed use is B1 which, by definition, is a use that is suitable within a
residential area. Any use that causes noise, dust, fumes, etc is not a B1 use. Therefore the main
concern therefore relates to possible noise and disturbance from traffic visiting the site. Itis
considered that commercial traffic visiting the site is likely to cause unacceptable levels of noise
and disturbance to the nearest residential properties and it is not considered that an hours of use
condition would overcome this concern as this is not the type of area, adjacent to open
countryside, in which one could expect such noise during the day. It is accepted that if used
intensively for agricultural storage the existing use could cause significant disturbance, including at
antisocial hours but, this is not currently the situation and it is considered that a B1 use is likely to
result in far more general disturbance on a daily basis.

Sustainability.

Whilst the policies of the Structure Plan seek to site new businesses within the urban areas for
sustainability reasons, this site is not exactly isolated. It lies on the urban fringe of Epping, close to
the main road network and within walking distance of bus stops and Epping Station. Reuse for
business purposes is therefore considered to be a relatively sustainable option in accordance with
the core strategy of the Structure plan.

Page 35



Comments on neighbour objections.

There is obviously considerable concern from neighbours regarding this application; most of their
concerns have been addressed above, however various other matters have been raised.

1. The fact that there may be a redevelopment of St Johns School which will increase traffic in the
Lane. This is a possibility, but it is not considered that this would make the current proposal
unacceptable. Business use of the premises is unlikely to result in very large numbers of traffic
movements and if the lane is appropriate for the level of use that the school may bring then it is
similarly appropriate for the increase from the current proposal.

2. Property Prices. Potential impact on property values is not a significant planning issue that
could justify refusal.

3. B1 use too vague could be used for storage by the back door. The building is too large to
subsequently be converted to B8 use without the need for planning consent. Even if there were a
named user proposed for the site with set traffic generation levels if permission were granted the
use could then change to any B1 use without the need for consent such details may therefore be
misleading. B1 use is specifically defined. If a use creates noise, dust, fumes, etc then it is not a
B1 use and cannot occupy the premises.

Conclusion

The appeal against the previous refusal of consent for change of use of the premises to B1 and B8
back in 1998 was dismissed mainly on the basis that additional parking, particularly of commercial
vehicles would be visually intrusive and have a materially greater impact than the present use on
the Green Belt and on the conservation area and the setting of the listed building. In considering
the current application we have to take into account that the B8 (storage and distribution element
of the proposal) has been removed and that as such there are unlikely to be HGVs parked at the
site. Additionally the current scheme does include the planting of hedging along the side and rear
boundaries to reduce the visual impact of any parking in connection with the use. However on
balance given the sensitive nature of this Green Belt site, adjacent to the Conservation Area and
the Listed Farmhouse it is considered that the parking that would inevitably result from the change
of use would be detrimental to openness and to the character of the area.

Additionally, there are now residential properties actually abutting the building. The occupants of
Number 5 Creeds Farm Yard in particular, which is already overshadowed by the building, would
be likely to suffer from noise and disturbance from vehicles accessing the site and loading and
unloading adjacent to the front of their property.

The application is therefore recommended for refusal.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

TOWN COUNCIL — Committee objected to this application on the grounds that more detailed
information was needed relating to the change of use to B1 (business use only. Although
previously Committee had no objection to the proposal for change of use, they did request the
District Council to closely consider the adjacent residential premises and to impose conditions on
the use of the barn which would avoid disturbance to the residential properties. Committee also
requested the District Council take into account proposals for St Johns School development
because if the school development were approved use of the barn for storage with large vehicle
movements could cause traffic hazard which would impact on the school use.

EPPING SOCIETY - Object. Inappropriate in the Green Belt and a conservation area . Could lead
to increased and more regular traffic use which would cause an unacceptable traffic hazard in
Bury Lane.

2 CREEDS FARM YARD and

Page 36



3 CREEDS FARM YARD - Close to our property and would affect us and the other residents of
Creeds Farm Barn. Concerned about loss of enjoyment and decrease in value. Green belt and
Conservation Area. Out of character with rural location and unsuitable location so close to
residential area. Increase in traffic movements will make exist from Creeds farm Yard even more
difficult. Increased noise, pollution and impact on the environment.

12 HIGHFIELD GREEN — Object. The road cannot cope with yet more traffic. The barn is not
situated in in an area where expansion can be considered because bury Lane is not a 4 lane
highway and cannot cope with all this traffic without disrupting our lives and safety completely.

23 HIGHFIELD GREEN - Business use is a very broad term and the landscaping seems to be just
hedging. My objections therefore remain the same. Highway danger. Already very tricky driving
out of the Highfield Green Estate. Increasing numbers of commercial and private vehicles are
using the lane. If St Johns School is built then the lane will be even more dangerous. Noise and
pollution. Unsuitable area for such a business. The barn is directly opposite my small back
garden.

39 HIGHFIELD GREEN - Very much against the proposal. Bury Lane is already bad enough with
the way some cars come speeding along, more traffic would be disastrous.

26 HIGHFIELD GREEN - Strongly opposed. More traffic will result inappropriate to this narrow
lane. Already disturbed by large lorries several times a year filling and then emptying the barn with
silage, mud is spread all over bury Lane and when turning the large lorries almost hit the back
walls of our gardens. A new school is built with access down Bury Lane. There is more traffic now
than when the last application was turned down by the Minister. There should be a traffic count.
This will not be an office the only possible use for the building is storage/ distribution. Noise
nuisance and danger will result from the development.

APPLE TREE COTTAGE, BURY LANE — Object. Within Conservation Area and Metropolitan
Green Belt. Close to residential properties including a listed building. Concerned about increases
in noise and pollution, heavy traffic possibly during night hours. Parking and loading, unloading of
goods vehicles of whatever size will be harmful to rural character and intrusive in the Green Belt.
No indication of what would be held on the site, there could be significant refuse created. If the
use is unknown how can the planning officer judge whether it will be detrimental to amenity by
noise, vibration, small etc. Also a B1 use can change to a B8 use without the need for planning
permission (if the size is no more than 235 sgm. Given the nature of the building, no windows etc
the only feasible use under B1 would be storage related to light industry. If approved it will be
difficult to control the use and to enforce conditions. More traffic in the lane would add a further
safety hazard if St Johns School redevelopment is implements. The application is too vague and
open ended and should be refused.

Page 37



The matenal contained i this plot has been reproduced
from an Crdnance Survey mep with the permission of the

GonfioBze of Her Magesty's Slatomery. (o) Cooan Cogyiight.

Unautharized repreduction imfiinges Crown Capytight and
Iy lead to presecution o civil procesdings,
EFDC licence Mo 100018534

ES LT

ltem No: 3
Scale: 1:2500

Page 38




Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/1869/05
SITE ADDRESS: Land adj, lvy Cottage
Coppice Row

Theydon Bois

PARISH:

Theydon Bois

APPLICANT:

Mr S Wild

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Erection of detached house.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT

CONDITIONS:

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans
received on 7 December 2005 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.

Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details.

Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and
maintained in the agreed positions.

A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to commencement of the development. The assessment shall
demonstrate compliance with the principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems
(SuDS). The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the first occupation of
the building hereby approved and shall be adequately maintained.

Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window
openings in the flank wall facing Berberris shall be fitted with obscured glass, and
shall be permanently retained in that condition.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument
revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage(s) hereby approved shall be retained
so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary
storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be
converted into a room or used for any other purpose.

Page 39




10

11

12

13

The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing.

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a
timetable for its implementation. If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand,
and in writing.

The statement must include details of all the means by which successful
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant
protection and aftercare. It must also include details of the supervision of the
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority.

The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to
any variation.

Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface
materials for the driveway and turning area, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The agreed surface treatment shall be
completed prior to the first occupation of the development.

Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Vehicle sight lines of 90m x 2m x 90m shall be provided and shall be permanently
maintained at the vehicle access to the site.

There shall be no obstruction to visibility above ground level within the area of 1.5m
x 1.5m pedestrian visibility splays required adjacent to the access, set relative to the
back edge of the footway.

Before the building is occupied, a suitably surfaced area shall be provided, and
thereafter maintained to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority, within the
curtilage of the site to enable a vehicle to turn and leave the property in forward
gear. Details of this should be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development.

Description of Proposal:

Erection of a two storey, detached 4-bedroom house with attached single garage.

Description of Site:

Area of land having a road frontage width of 7.75 metres, which is located alongside and to the
east of vy Cottage. Houses on this side of Coppice Row back onto the Deer Sanctuary. The site,

Page 40



which formerly formed a part of the garden of Ivy Cottage, has been cleared of vegetation and is
currently being used to store building materials associated with extensions to vy Cottage.

Relevant History:

None specifically to this area of land. lvy Cottage was the subject of an application for two storey
rear and single storey side extensions, which was approved in October 2005.

Policies Applied:

Residential development policies, DBE1, DBE2, DBE3, DBE6, DBES8, DBE9, T14 and T17 relating
to access and parking provision.

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues in determining this application concern the suitability of the site for development;
the possible effect on the amenities of neighbours and the area as a whole; the appearance of the
new house and adequacy of parking and access to the site.

The plot has been created by the sub-division of the land occupied by Ivy Cottage and would be
approximately 8 metres wide and 95 metres deep (this compares favourably with a plot adjacent to
Wantz Coppice Row where a detached dwelling was permitted in 1999 to be built on a plot 7.65
metres wide x 130 metres deep). The proposed house has been designed to incorporate dormers
to the front roof slope, which helps to reduce the bulk of the building when viewed from the road. It
will be of similar height to the cottages which adjoin on either side and will not, therefore, be
intrusive in the street scene.

The depth of the new dwelling is such that it would not be excessive when related to the
extensions currently being built at lvy Cottage; and the addition which has been approved to be
built on the adjacent 'Berberris'. The additional depth of the adjacent developments will ensure
that the new dwelling does not intrude into the backland area and would not detract form its open
character. There will, in fact be negligible impact on the amenities of the adjacent house owing to
the separation between the properties; and the intention to erect screen fences along the site
boundary which will inhibit the outlook from sideways facing windows in the property.

The new dwelling meets the Council's standards regarding the provision of private amenity open
space; and off-street car parking provision. In addition a facility for turning a car in the front car
garden is also proposed which will enable a vehicle to enter and leave the site in a forward gear.

Notwithstanding the comments, which have been received from interested parties, the
development is not deemed to have a detrimental impact on the street scene; nor to adversely
affect the amenities or character of the adjoining properties.

The proposals accord with Local Plan Policies and the application is recommended for conditional
approval.

Page 41



SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

PARISH COUNCIL: No objections in principle - recommend a condition requiring the reinstatement
of the hedgerow be applied.

THEYDON BOIS AND DISTRICT RURAL PRESERVATION SOCIETY: Proposal will severely
damage the character and lower the visual amenity of the area. The application is to slot a 4-
bedroom house onto a narrow plot. vy Cottage is worthy of inclusion on the Local List and we
would be fully opposed to the proposal which would detract form the visual aspect of the historic
property. Depth of proposed house exceeds that of the extension proposed at Berberris - could
therefore result in a loss of light to that property. Only a single garage is proposed - the visual
amenities of the area will be jeopardized in view of the number of cars having to be parked in front
of the new house. Reversing of cars onto the road will be dangerous to other road users.

THE LAURELS, COPPICE ROW: Development is too large for the site. Insufficient parking
provision. Foul sewer will have to be diverted (falls will not be adequate to allow for this). Position
of house is too far back on the plot. Will be unsightly and will affect our privacy. Property
speculators are spoiling the area.

BERBERRIS, COPPICE ROW: Object - overdevelopment of a restricted site. Have already
cleared the site and erected fences. Proposals do not respect the original building lines of vy
Cottage. Will be overlooked by windows in the side of the new house. Site has been cleared of
trees and shrubs. Inadequate parking provision for a 4-bedroom house. Intrusion of development
into back garden area. Overlooking of our garden. Removal of plants to erect a garden wall
between these properties and to substitute a fence provides scant protection for our privacy.

Page 42



Thaydan Flain

The matenal contained i this plot has been reproduced
from an Crdnance Survey mep with the permission of the
GonficBze of Her Magesty's Slabomery. (o) Cooan Copyiight.
Unautharized repreduction imfinges Crown Capytight and
iy lead to presecution of clvil proceedings,

EFDC licence o 100018534

Scale: 1:1250

Page 43




Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/2030/05

SITE ADDRESS: Wansfell College

30 Piercing Hill
Theydon Bois
Epping

Essex

CM16 7SW

PARISH:

Theydon Bois

APPLICANT:

Mr J Cooper

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Change of use, alteration and extension of former college

building to contain 20no. residential flats with demolition of
No.30A (Woodview) to provide on-site parking.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT

CONDITIONS:

1

The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details.

Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and
maintained in the agreed positions.

Prior to the first occupation of the flats hereby approved, and notwithstanding the
details on the approved plans, all first and second floor windows indicated on
drawing No. PO8-04 (on the elevation facing towards No. 31 Piercing Hill) shall be
fitted with obscure glass at the lower half of the window, which this half shall be in a
fixed frame, and be permanently retained in that condition.

Prior to first occupation of the flats hereby approved, the velux windows in the roof
facing No. 31 Piercing Hill shall be fitted with obscure glass and shall be
permanently retained in that condition.

Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the building
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Page 44




Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site.

No development shall take place on site, including site clearance, tree works,
demolition, storage of materials or other preparatory work, until all details relevant to
the retention and protection of trees, hereafter called the Arboricultural Method
Statement, have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in
writing. Thereafter the development shall be undertaken only in accordance with the
approved details, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written
consent to any variation.

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include a tree protection plan to show the
areas designated for the protection of trees, shrubs and hedges, hereafter referred
to as Protection Zones. Unless otherwise agreed, the Protection Zones will be
fenced, in accordance with the British Standard Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations (BS.5837:2005) and no access will be permitted for any
development operation.

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include all other relevant details, such as
changes of level, methods of demolition and construction, the materials, design and
levels of roads, footpaths, parking areas and of foundations, walls and fences. It
shall also include the control of potentially harmful operations, such as burning, the
storage, handling and mixing of materials, and the movement of people or
machinery across the site, where these are within 10m of any designated Protection
Zone.

The fencing, or other protection which is part of the approved Statement shall not be
moved or removed, temporarily or otherwise, until all works, including external works
have been completed and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials removed
from the site.

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall indicate the specification and timetable of
any tree works, which shall be in accordance with the British Standard
Recommendations for Tree Works (BS.3998: 1989).

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include a scheme for the inspection and
supervision of the tree protection measures. The scheme shall be appropriate to the
scale and duration of the works and may include details of personnel induction and
awareness of arboricultural matters; identification of individual responsibilities and
key personnel; a statement of delegated powers; frequency, dates and times of
inspections and reporting, and procedures for dealing with variations and incidents.
The scheme of inspection and supervision shall be administered by a suitable
person, approved by the local planning authority but instructed by the applicant.

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) have
been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and these
works shall be carried out as approved. These details shall include, as appropriate,
and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels
or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle artefacts and
structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below
ground. Details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or

Page 45



10

11

establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants,
including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers / densities where appropriate.
If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed,
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall
be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written
consent to any variation.

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until all details relevant to the implementation of hard and soft landscape works and
tree planting, hereafter called the Landscape Method Statement, have been
submitted to the LPA, and the development shall not commence until the Landscape
Method Statement has been approved by the LPA in writing. All landscape works
shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details, unless the LPA has
given its prior written consent to any variation.

The Landscape Method Statement shall include as appropriate, protection of the
planting areas, where appropriate by fencing, during construction; preparation of the
whole planting environment, particularly to provide adequate drainage; and the
provision which is to be made for weed control, plant handling and protection,
watering, mulching, and the staking, tying and protection of trees. The Landscape
Method Statement shall also normally include provision for maintenance for the
period of establishment, including weeding, watering and formative pruning, and the
removal of stakes and ties. Provision shall be made for replacement of any plant,
including replacements, that are removed, are uprooted, or which die or fail to thrive,
for a period of five years from their planting, in the first available season and at the
same place, with an equivalent plant, unless the LPA has given its prior written
consent to any variation.

All hard and soft landscape works shall be completed prior to the occupation or use
of any part of the development, unless the LPA has given its prior written consent to
a programme of implementation. The hard and soft landscape works, including tree
planting, shall be carried out strictly in accordance with any approved timetable.

The Landscape Method Statement shall state the provision which is to be made for
supervision of the full programme of works, including site preparation, planting,
subsequent management and replacement of failed plants.

Before the occupation or use of any phase or part of the development, whichever is
the soonest, a Landscape Management Plan (LMP) shall be submitted to and
approved by the LPA.

The LMP shall contain a statement of the long-term aims and objectives covering all
elements of the implementation of the agreed landscape scheme and full details of
all management and establishment operations over a five-year period, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. It shall also include details of the relevant
management, and supervisory responsibilities.

The LMP shall also include provision for a review to be undertaken before the end of
the five year period. A revised LMP shall be submitted for the agreement of the LPA
before five years has expired. The revised details shall make similar provisions for
the long term maintenance and management of the landscape scheme. The revised
scheme shall also make provision for revision and updating.

Page 46



12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

The provisions of the LMP, and subsequent revisions shall be adhered to and any
variation shall have been agreed beforehand in writing by the LPA. No trees,
shrubs, hedges or other plants shall be removed for the duration of the Landscape
Management Scheme or it revisions, without the prior written approval of the LPA.
Any trees, shrubs, hedges or other plants being so removed shall be replaced in the
first available planting season by an equivalent replacement or replacements to the
satisfaction of the LPA. Management of the landscape scheme in accordance with
the LMP or their agreed revisions shall not cease before the duration of the use of
the development unless agreed in writing by the LPA.

A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to commencement of development. The assessment shall include
calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm detention using
Windes or other similar programme. The approved measures shall be undertaken
prior to the first occupation of the building hereby approved and shall e adequately
maintained.

Satisfactory provision for the drainage of foul and surface water shall be provided
prior to the commencement of the development. Foul water shall be discharged
directly to the public sewer, and the scheme shall be implemented in accordance
with the agreed details.

The party floor and wall insulation between the properties shall comply with the
current Approved Document E of the Building Regulations 1984. If it is found that
the partition does not comply with the regulations it shall be upgraded to comply with
the regulations as a minimum. The details of any works shall be approved by the
Local Planning Authority before the premises are occupied.

All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries
and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless othewise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

No development hereby approved shall take place until measures to enable the
provision of highway improvements to the local area, necessitated by this
development, are secured.

No development hereby approved shall take place until measures to enable the
provision of education improvements to the local area, necessitated by this
development, are secured.

Details of secure covered cycle and motorcycle parking shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The parking shall take place in
accordance with those agreed details.

The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the
occupation of the development, and the dwelling known as "Woodview", 30A
Piercing Hill shall be demolished prior to the construction of this. The parking area
shall be retained free of obstruction for the parking or residents and visitor's
vehicles.

Page 47



20 No works shall be undertaken to the access way to the car parking area (known as
"Rothwell Road" without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

21 Before any of the flats are occupied, a lay-by shall be provided (the details of which
shall have been previously submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority) to allow a passing place. This lay-by shall be permanently retained for
this function and shall not be used for the parking of vehicles at any time.

22 Prior to the commencement of the development, details of lighting (which shall be
low level) for the car parking area shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The lighting shall be implemented in accordance with
those agreed details.

Description of Proposal:

This application is for change of use of former adult residential college building, together with
alterations and extensions to contain a total of twenty residential flats. The proposal also includes
landscaping, provision of a total of 26 car parking spaces, as well as the demolition of the existing
No. 30A (Woodview) in order to implement the car parking.

A concurrent planning application (EPF/2031/05) has been submitted in respect to obtaining
outline approval for a replacement dwelling in lieu of the demolition of Woodview.

Description of Site:

The site comprises a detached two/three storey building and grounds located on the western side
of the “slip road” part of Piercing Hill that were, until recently used for adult residential education.
“Wansfell” itself is located in a uniform building line, however additions at the rear project deeper
than neighbouring dwellings. An access-way is located along the site’s southern boundary, and
this serves as access to No. 28A and No. 30A (Woodview). Car parking areas to the former
college are located near to Woodview, and also in the grounds to the rear of the plot of No. 28A.

Although outside the application site, the site contains extensive grounds that lie to the rear of
Nos. 31 to 34, which include tennis courts and a Locally Listed pergola, and features many
preserved trees. The entire site is within the Green Belt, and is adjacent to Epping Forest. The
former College is of a Victorian construction, with extensions having been added in the late
nineteenth and twentieth centuries. The large addition at the back was constructed in the 1980s,
and is of a more modern appearance than the facade of the building that fronts Piercing Hill.

Relevant History:

The site has been subject to various planning applications for alterations and extensions since the
1960s. The County Council approved the bulk of the extension work in the late 1980s, and further
development was approved (but not implemented in 1999. The most recent approvals are (all
application numbers relate to County Council references):

CC/EPF/12/86 — Two bedroom first floor extension. Granted permission by the County Council on
24/4/87.

Page 48



CC/EPF/9/87 — Ground floor two storey extensions. Granted permission by the County Council on
15/1/88.

CC/EPF/102/98 (County Council Ref) — New multi-purpose studio, lift installation, internal
remodelling and improvement to access. Granted permission by the County Council on 5/1/99.

Policies Applied:

Core Strategy, Countryside, Built Environment, Housing Provision and Rural Economy Policies
from the Essex and Southend On Se Replacement Structure Plan:-

CS2 — Protecting the natural and built environment.

CS4 - Sustainable new development.

C2 — Development within the Metropolitan Green Belt.

BE1 — Urban intensification.

H2 — Housing development, the sequential approach

H3 — Location of residential development.

RE2 — Re-use of rural buildings.

Green Belt, Heritage Conservation, Design & Built Environment, Landscaping and Highway
Policies from Epping Forest District Council’'s Adopted Local Plan:-
GB2 - Development within the Metropolitan Green Belt.

GB8 — Changes of use of buildings within the Metropolitan Green Belt.
HC5 — Effect of development on Epping Forest.

DBE1 — Design of new buildings.

DBE?2 - Effect of new buildings on surrounding area.

DBE4 — New buildings within the Green Belt.

DBEG6 — Car parking for new residential developments.

DBES8 — Provision of private amenity space.

DBE9 — Amenity considerations.

LL10 — Retention of trees.

LL11 — Provision of landscaping.

T14 — Provision of off-street car parking.

T17 — Highway safety.

Core Policy, Green Belt, Community Facilities and Sustainable Transport Policies from Epping
Forest District Council’s Local Plan Alterations (not adopted, but a material consideration in
determining this application):-

CP1 — Achieving sustainable development objectives.

CP2 — Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment.

GB2A — Development within the Metropolitan Green Belt.

GBB8A — Change of use or adaptation of buildings.

GB9A — Residential conversions

CF12 - Loss of community facilities.

ST4 — Highway safety.

ST6 — Vehicle parking

Issues and Considerations:

There are several sets of issues with this application:

1. Green Belt considerations and suitability of the site.

2. Design of the external changes.

3. Effect on neighbouring properties and the surrounding area.
4, Landscaping and effect on preserved trees.

Page 49



5. Highway and traffic issues
6. Other considerations.

1. Green Belt considerations and suitability of the site.

The site, and surrounding area is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt. Green Belt Policy
restricts development that is inappropriate, and states that permission will not be granted except
for (among other criteria) the re-use of buildings. Both the Structure and Local Plans permit
adaptation and re-use of buildings provided they are of permanent and substantial construction,
and are capable of conversion without major or complete reconstruction. In addition, the building
must be in keeping with its surroundings. Residential conversion is permitted by development plan
policy (GB8 of the Local Plan), providing the building is unsuitable for alternative uses (such as
business, storage, tourism or agriculture). Policies also state that the use must not result in traffic
generation that would be detrimental to the character of the area. Although not formally adopted,
GBY9A of the Local Plan alterations requires that applications for residential conversion must be
accompanied by evidence that business use is unsuitable.

Looking initially at the principle of residential conversion, the character of the surrounding area is
almost entirely residential, and the “slip road” cut off from Piercing Hill is characterised by large
detached dwellings. Further away from the application site (nearer the main village), residential
properties are also commonplace. Essex County Council, who used to run the college facility that
closed in 2004 has sold the building. Whilst the loss of the college is understood as being
regrettable, it is nonetheless a fact and has closed. This application has to be assessed on the
basis of the acceptability of the use proposed.

The proposal intends to convert and re-use almost all of the existing building, which is considered
favourable as opposed to partial or wholesale demolition of the building and accords with the
principles of sustainability. The applicants have provided information how, following closure of the
college, it was marketed extensively in the period from October 2004. Apparently, no interest was
expressed in using the building for anything other than residential use. In the context of the
surrounding area, residential use is considered acceptable. It is also considered that any other use
away from residential or its existing use (which would permit the use of the building as a nursing
home) would be unsuitable to the surrounding area.

Wansfell has been subjected to significant extension work during its period as a college, the
majority having occurred in the 1980s. From the wider perspective, these extensions do not
appear visible from the surrounding area, and due consideration would have been given to their
impact by the County Council who determined the applications at that time (particularly as under
current green belt policy, extensions to existing non-residential uses are acceptable given certain
criteria). A further planning application was approved in 1998 for a detached studio, however this
was never implemented.

The proposal seeks to extend the building in several areas, which will result in the enlargement of
the total floorspace by 8%. This amount also includes some excavation in the basement area to
increase internal floor area. The enlargements are to be a two storey addition at the side of the
building (facing towards No. 29), a first floor rear addition onto the larger rear “wing”, an infill
(predominantly glazed) between the two rear “wings” (to provide internal communal areas), a first
and second floor extension at the side facing towards No. 31, and a modest two storey side
extension replacing two protrusions near to the boiler house. In the light of the approval which was
never constructed, together with the fact these extensions are of a modest size, the enlargements
are considered acceptable. Although the site is designated as green belt, the surrounding area
represents a residential ribbon development, and in the context of the surrounding area the
openness of the green belt will not be materially harmed.

Page 50



Significant concern has been raised that the number of units proposed (20) is excessive for the
site and that it would be detrimental to the character of the surrounding area. It is acknowledged
that the character of this Piercing Hill “slip road” is of large detached dwellings, however the wider
area (where Piercing Hill is nearer the main village) is also comprised of smaller properties.
Structure Plan Policy BE1 promotes maximising densities (however this relates urban areas) and
PPG3 promote such conversions, stating that Local Planning Authorities should take “a more
flexible approach to development plan standards with regard to densities, car parking, amenity
space and overlooking”. In this particular case, the fact that the building is to be converted without
recourse to significantly extending it is considered a very special circumstance. In addition, this
proposal represents a sustainable re-use of the building and also will provide a range of smaller
units of accommodation, for which there is a shortfall in this district. Given the landscaping and car
parking that is to be undertaken (that will be assessed below) the number of units will not be
detrimental to the objectives of the green belt. Whilst concern is raised about the creation of a
precedent, any future applications would have to be judged on their own individual merits or
whether special circumstances exist as in this case.

2. Design of the external changes

The front of the building, and the Victorian facade is to remain largely unchanged by this
development. The extensions at the side of the building, facing towards Nos. 29 and 31 are to be
sub-ordinate and respective of the design of the existing building. The remaining alterations to the
rear are not visible from the surrounding street-scene, however they are of an acceptable design
and are considered to significantly improve the aesthetics of the building.

Changes in the elevations to the large modern rear “wing”, as well as removal of unsightly
additions directly to the rear of the original part of the building will greatly add to the charater of the
building. The rear “cross-wing” is of a modern, glazed appearance, which adds to the character of
the structure. Although an element of flat roof is proposed, the fact it is at the rear and replaces an
unsightly set of extensions means that on balance this is acceptable in this case.

An enlargement of the basement area (at the side, facing No. 29) is of an acceptable appearance,
and the existing boiler house is to be converted to garage (motor)bikes. Aesthetically, no design
issues arise with this development, which will have the beneficial effect remedying previous
unsympathetic additions.

3. Effect on neighbouring properties and the surrounding area.

In the terms of the built form of the development, the alterations and extensions will not result in
the overshadowing of neighbours, nor will it give rise to loss of light. The existing “wing” is currently
very deep in relation to No. 31, but the addition of the first floor extension will not exacerbate the
situation. Similarly, the enlargements to the upper floorspace pose no light loss issues.

Concern has been raised regarding overlooking of surrounding properties as a result of the
conversions, particularly at the side of the building at the upper levels. The existing college
building has a number of windows that face towards No. 31 (both in the roof and on the side walls)
that serve the bedrooms for its halls of residence. Overlooking would have already taken place to
the private rear garden of that property, A condition can be imposed to request that frosted glass
be installed at the lower part of these windows, thereby avoiding additional overlooking to the
existing private areas. It is therefore considered that the proposal will not give rise to serious and
adverse levels of overlooking over and above that which already would have occurred. A condition
can ensure that the new windows remain as part obscure glazed, and is installed and remains in
situ permanently. Noise levels would not be above conventional residential levels and so will not
be a reason for refusal. A communal roof terrace is located within the central part of the rear of the
building, which will not pose overlooking concerns.

Page 51



The new addition that is to face No. 29 will also add more windows. This part of the building
served a bar area on the ground floor, and bedrooms upstairs. It is acknowledged that the levels of
overlooking from this part of the building will increase, but the separation between the building and
No. 29 (approximately 18 metres), coupled with the screening along that property’s boundary
means this will not be so excessive as to justify a refusal.

Neighbours have raised concerns about the number of units that are to be proposed, and the
amount of activity that is to be generated from the site, particularly traffic movements and the
impacts this will have on amenity. According to information provided by the applicant, the existing
college had the capacity to accommodate 42 students, plus lecturers, catering and general staff in
addition to day students. Whilst a reason that was cited as the cause for the closure of the college
was lack of attendance, the fact remains that it could have contained more people than would be
likely with this proposal. Residential use is more in keeping with the prevailing character of the
area, and the location of the car-park to the rear of the site (away from neighbouring residential
properties) is such that amenity will not be adversely affected. Moreover, the associated number of
vehicle movements is likely to be less than the college would be were it at full capacity. The type of
traffic associated with this proposal would be domestic, as opposed to the deliveries and heavier
traffic that would have visited the college.

The 1998 consent permitted a lay-by for delivery vehicles in a similar position to the site of the
proposed disabled parking, but this was never built. A condition was attached to that consent
requiring the lay by to be kept clear and not to be used for parking (so as to prevent the free flow
of traffic in order to protect amenity). The fact that the proposed car parking spaces are to be
reserved for disabled drivers, together with the fact that parking here would not result in an
obstruction means that the likely effects on amenity are to be minimal compared to the provision of
the lay by in conjunction with the college. This is not considered to be an issue to warrant a further
condition in this case.

4. Landscaping and effect on preserved trees.

The existing grounds of Wansfell are highly established and exhibit a number of mature plants,
trees and bushes. This development poses to retain this, and so places the communal car park at
the rear (on the site of No. 30A). The site is subject to preserved trees, which tree officers do not
consider will be adversely affected by the development. The implementation of a landscaping
scheme, method statement and management plan, together with the submission of detailed tree
protection measures will ensure this development is acceptable in the context of the surrounding
area.

The extent of the grounds, together with the character of the surroundings is such that amenity
space provision is adequate, and no issues are posed in this respect.

5. Highway and traffic issues.

A significant level of concern has been raised with regard to the implications of this development
on highway safety, both from the perspective of Piercing Hill and within the site. Highways officers
have raised no objections to this application subject to the developer providing a contribution
towards highway improvements for Piercing Hill and adjacent roads. The developer has agreed to
provide £100,000 for this.

The width of the access way (“Rothwell Road”, which is owned by the applicant) has been a
source of major concern, both for residents and the Parish Council, who feel that it would
represent a danger for vehicles having to reverse back out onto Piercing Hill when encountering
an oncoming vehicle. Whilst highway officers state that this layout would be unacceptable for an
entirely new site application, they have assessed the proposed use in the light of that already
having taken place. Although no objections have been raised as a result, these officers have

Page 52



advised that were the access widened (by 2 metres), to allow a passing place/lay by in one
location this would benefit safety. A condition has therefore been recommended to allow such a
bay to be provided. Discussion with landscape officers state a preference for a lay by to be west of
and near to the proposed disabled parking spaces (on the side of the road near to the building),
thereby ensuring that no trees are disturbed. The final form of such a lay by can therefore be
controlled by way of a condition. The developer has confirmed in writing that the access way is not
to be widened to cover the drainage ditch adjacent to Nos. 29 and 28A.

Parking provision is acceptable, particularly since the adopted standards relate to the provision of
maximum numbers of parking spaces. The provision of 24 spaces (plus two disabled parking) is
appropriate since this allows the provision of at least one space per unit. Additionally, the site has
capacity within the existing driveway to the frontage that would add to the overall ability of the site
to cope with visitors’ parking. A condition will ensure that details of low-level car park lighting (that
does not pollute the surrounding environment) are submitted for approval.

6. Other considerations.

Essex County Council Education Services have requested that the developer provides a
contribution of £17,206, since this proposal would result in two additional primary school places
being required. The Theydon Bois Primary School has a capacity of 315, giving a published
admission of 45 places per year (which are usually fully subscribed). The district has a deficit of
permanent school places, so the contribution will meet the additional need that will be generated
by this development.

Water pressure and drainage have been raised as issues of concern. Thames Water (responsible
for the drainage), have not commented adversely on the proposals. Three Valleys Water
(responsible for the water supply) have commented stating that they would not object to any
proposed development. If however the existing infrastructure does not have the capacity to cope
with the additional demand that arises from the proposal, any off-site works to bring water to the
development will be at the developers cost. There are therefore measures in place that are
external to the planning system that would overcome any issues that may arise to water pressure.

Concerns have been raised regarding errors on the originally submitted application form. The
applicant has submitted another form and these errors have now been rectified.

Matters such as fire safety will be controlled under the Building Regulation procedures. A condition
can request that details of a refuse area are submitted before the development commences, so
ensuring adequate storage of waste. It is considered that the application site is far enough away
from the SSSI to warrant any conditions being imposed relating to the storage of materials.

Although the Local Plan alterations state that applications for proposals within excess of 15
dwellings shall be eligible for providing affordable housing, this is a Policy that has not yet been
formally adopted nor subject to a public inquiry. Consequently it is considered that it would be
unreasonable to impose such a requirement.

Conclusion

The concerns of neighbours and the Parish Council have been carefully considered. Although the
number of units proposed will result in a greater density than is evident in the surrounding area,
the proposal will give rise to the sustainable re-use of an existing building, the facade of which will
remain largely unchanged. The alterations and extensions are of a modest size, and will not
materially affect the openness or objectives of the green belt. The development will improve past
unsympathetic alterations to the building without excessively affecting the amenities of neighbours.
Highway safety will not be unduly affected, and a contribution from the developer will enable

Page 53



improvements to be made to the nearby road system. The effects on residential amenity have
been carefully assessed, and no undue impacts are considered to occur.

The application is therefore recommended for approval.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

PARISH COUNCIL - Objection: We strongly object to the number of flats proposed in this
development. In our opinion this is severe overdevelopment of the site and the site is totally
inappropriate for the proposed number of flats. The additional units will more than double the
number of residents currently living in Old Piercing Hill. This will have a significant impact on the
number of traffic movements in the immediate vicinity and, in particular, will increase road safety
fears, notably at the junction of Old Piercing Hill and Piercing Hill. It will further increase the
amount of traffic passing through the recognised accident black spot at the junction of Piercing Hill
and Coppice Row from where traffic regularly backs up as far as the Old Piercing Hill junction. We
feel insufficient on-site parking for residents and visitors will inevitably result in drivers parking in
Old Piercing Hill. This would be most hazardous as it is a narrow and bending road. We note that
in the Application For Permission to carry out Development Under the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 form, the applicant makes no reference to the demolition of Woodview (Question 3) and,
in fact states that no residential units will be lost through demolition (Question 7). There are
existing and well documented local drainage and water supply issues for residents in Old Piercing
Hill and we are concerned as to the impact on these utilities from any new development. We note
that Rothwell Road is not included in the planning application and as access is integral to planning
permission being granted we cannot see why this is outside the red boundary showing the area
affected by the planning application. At present this is not an appropriate access for the proposed
density of twenty flats and two houses (see also EPF/2031/05). This lane is adjoined by an ancient
ditch which is essential for local drainage. We feel it is essential that clear plans for this access are
submitted as part of any revised application.

32 THEYDON PARK ROAD: Object. Change of use will increase road traffic in an accident
blackspot.

14 PIERCING HILL — Object. Road cannot take more traffic. Traffic is fast enough up the hill, and
there are often accidents. Too much, without the disruption of builder’s lorries and then the
additional cars when they are sold.

15 PIERCING HILL — Object. 20 Flats out of keeping with the area. Piercing hill has long standing
traffic problems and no speed restriction, which poses enormous risk. Development should be in
keeping with surrounding. Demolition of Woodview is unacceptable; should be used as a dwelling.

34 PIERCING HILL — Object. 1) Developers have no intention of enhancing the area. Access road
has been blocked, guard dogs have patrolled the grounds making it unsafe for anyone to use their
right of way. Trees have been removed. 2) It is obvious that options are being kept open for further
development. 3) A sub-standard area of private amenity space is provided and is not in keeping
with area. 4) Health and safety concerns; access for fire service to forest via Rothwell Road has
not been accounted for; water pressure is an issue for Piercing Hill; the area has drainage and
flooding problems that will worsen; basement in the college shows that flooding has not been
researched; parking insufficient, will cause on-street parking. The road is too narrow to cope with
increased traffic, that will make it a hazard. 5) Windows will overlook No. 31. 6) The college has
already been extended beyond legal amount. 7) Conversion into flats is not in accordance with the
values of Theydon Bois. 8). Application is contrary to Government, County and District Council
Policies. 9) Concern that EFDC has granted permission that has been in breach of Green Belt
policy, with damage to roads and dumping. This area cannot suffer any more planning oversights.

Page 54



59 WOODLAND GROVE, EPPING - For last 150 years all houses in the Piercing Hill are single
occupancy family dwellings. Work of volunteers and local councils and associations to retain rural
atmosphere would be overturned. Road cannot cope with that amount of additional traffic. Aspect
of Old Piercing Hill would be destroyed. Plans breach public right of way over Rothwell Road,
which is not suitable for increased residential traffic or heavy plant. Heavy plant will cause a risk to
walkers, riders, cyclists and residents. Restrictions should be in place. Nuisance will occur from
the redevelopment.

ESSEX GARDENS TRUST — Wansfell College gardens contain the remains of a Victorian garden
with pathways, mature trees, pond with island, oriental style pavilion, and restored lean-to, green
house and donkey shed.

34 PIERCING HILL (2nd Representation) — Object. Must be confirmed that everything is in
accordance with health and safety regulations. Gardens must be protected. Right of way has been
breached. 20 smalll flats are out of keeping and will fail to preserve the rural atmosphere. Garden
too small. Water board cannot service the existing houses, let alone 20 more. Drainage is also
inadequate. Piercing Hill is notorious for accidents, and development will quadruple resident traffic
at the junction onto the main Hill, increasing risk. College has already exceeded maximum
percentage increase for extensions. The cellar is prone to flooding and cannot be converted.
Parking guidelines are out of keeping with the plot and will cause parking on the narrow road.

5 PIERCING HILL — Objection. Small flats are incongruous with the rest of the road. Safety
concerns; there are frequent accidents and 20 more flats will increase this further. Road is used by
cyclists, horse riders and walkers of the forest.

26 PIERCING HILL — Objections. 1) Overdevelopment with limited accommodation per dwelling.
2) We experience supply difficulties with mains services, this would be worse with 20 extra
dwellings. Also a risk of flooding with more surface run-off down the hill. 3) Car parking spaces falil
to take account of rural environment of property. On street parking would pose a danger to road
users. 4) Increase in traffic will be a hazardous operation. Many accidents and poor visibility,
together with lack of street-lighting will cause problems.

68 FOREST DRIVE — Object strongly. 1) Overdevelopment and intensification of existing building
into out of character accommodation in a small residential area of larger homes. Would set a
damaging precedent to the village. 2) Limited off-street parking close to an accident black spot at
the junction of Piercing Hill and Coppice Row. Believe that these applications are submitted by the
same company for Parsonage golf course. Do not believe this developer should be trusted.

23 COPPICE ROW - Unhappy about any large scale development. The whole fabric of our district
is being spoilt. | know Wansfell will be developed because there is a lot of money for developers.

3A PIERCING HILL — Object. The road is dangerous and proposal will increase traffic travelling on
and turning to this road. The potential for accidents involving pedestrians will be worse.

29 PIERCING HILL — Object. Accept that residential use is most appropriate. Scale of
development is too many and out of keeping with existing development. Concerned about highway
safety because of poor quality roadway. Increasing traffic on the access points to Piercing Hill will
add to danger. Vehicular traffic from the traffic was low as it operated a bus collection service to
the station. Water pressure inadequacies will be exacerbated.

THEYDON BOIS AND DISTRICT RURAL PRESERVATION SOCIETY — Have reservations about
the scale of this conversion. Would be overdevelopment and create infrastructure problems with
transport and schooling; the primary school is at maximum capacity. The college was rarely at full
occupancy, and the conversion will hold more people. Policy H6A of the Local Plan redeposit

Page 55



states that in settlements like Theydon Bois, a site over half a hectare or 15 units should have
affordable housing. This should be met or the number of units reduced. It would be difficult for all
residents to be evacuated safely in the case of fire. A small refuse area is to be provided, which is
insufficient. The proposal will add to difficulties with drainage. Parking provision is inadequate; the
distance from the station, poor bus services and local experience means that two spaces should
be provided. On street parking will cause problems. The access road has no passing places and
will cause constant backing up of vehicles, causing danger to the Piercing Hill. Concerns about
long-term future of the grounds. Developer needs to protect the trees.

FRIENDS OF EPPING FOREST — Oppose the overdevelopment of so sensitive a site in close
proximity to Epping Forest. Visual intrusion, traffic movements and excessive lighting. Concerned
this may mark the beginning of a piecemeal development of the grounds.

CAMPAIGN TO PROTECT RURAL ESSEX — Redeposit Local Plan requires 15 units or more to
be eligible for affordable housing. None are included. Insufficient parking is provided. Access road
requires careful consideration. There are too many units.

28A PIERCING HILL — Object. There is more than enough parking, so why does the house have
to be demolished. 26 spaces is insufficient; many households have two cars. This will overspill
onto the road limiting access for pedestrians. It will also affect large vehicles. The road is
dangerous and there have been many accidents. 20 units will add to the risks. Water pressure has
always been poor, especially in the summer. More flats will put added pressure on the system.
Concerned this will set a precedent for future developments of its kind and change the character of
the village, making it part of an expanded London. Residential apartments out of keeping.

28A PIERCING HILL (Further representation) — Object. Adverse effect on Rothwell Road; this
offers the only access to our property. Cars leaving car park will not have clear view of the road
and result in meeting head on. The only passing places are the verges or the driveway to our
property, which is unacceptable. Application boundary does not include the road, believe the
application is incomplete. Widening the road would impact the frontage of my property and affect
its value, and the loss of the ditch would impact the effect of drainage. A better solution would be
to re-use the existing car parking spaces. Parking on the frontage would prevent congestion in
Rothwell Road. 20 flats are an overdevelopment and out of character. Inadequate parking means
on-street parking that will cause problems in an accident black-spot area. Water pressure is an
issue. Building should not be extended.

11 WOODLAND WAY — Concerned about extensions and alterations to make modest semi-
detached houses twice their original size. The development needs to be looked at carefully; the
green belt is being eroded. The houses on Piercing Hill retain their character and am anxious the
building is not destroyed by greed and overdevelopment.

ROTHWELL, PIERCING HILL — Object. Will increase residents in the Hill by 50%. The Hill is
narrow, causing difficulty to vehicles and horse riders. Application is overdevelopment. The ditch at
the side of my house is not owned by the applicant. The basement of the college has flooded, and
building across the ditch will cause a problem in the wet season. As | am within the gates of the
college, | object to the car parking. It will be an eyesore and will force an increased number of cars
to pass each other in a narrow lane. Do not want trees to be cut down. Object to the demolition of
30A and have concerns for the future of the site. I trust there will be no mistakes as made on
Abridge Road. Would request a guarantee that | experience minimum disruption or disturbance. |
consider the number of flats affordable, and a considerable overdevelopment. The proposal should
be rejected.

2A ELIZABETH DRIVE - | feel this would in no way benefit the village. It would be a violation of

green belt land through its modern style and needless development for the reason for individual
profit of developers, and in no way would enhance the village character.

Page 56



27A PIERCING HILL — Parking will result in Piercing Hill. We live in the last house on the old road
and often experience cars blocking our driveway, This will get worse. College residents used
public transport and the change of use will result in extra traffic. Accidents have occurred here
over the years. Would the developer consider reducing the amount of flats?

36A PIERCING HILL — Object. 1) Too many apartments. 2) The common grounds are too small for
this number of dwellings. Only 24 car parking spaces which is not enough, leading to horrendous
parking in the road 3) Junctions at the road are dangerous and would be more so. 4) The houses
above Wansfell College have poor water pressure and this will be made worse. 5) Large number
of proposed dwellings would set a precedent of future sub-division in Piercing Hill.

28 PIERCING HILL — Strongly object to the overdevelopment of the site, which will double the
number of residents in the Piercing Hill slip road. Any more than six apartments would be out of
character with the area. Adjacent properties are large, well maintained family homes. Concerned
this will create a precedent. There is an issue of household water supply and drainage. 20 new
units will overload the ancient infrastructure. The college was rarely at full capacity, and far more
residents will live in the building. If the ditches are to be covered, it will result in flooding problems
to my house and No. 29. Do not want to experience damage from flooding. There is insufficient
parking, there should be 30-35 spaces. Cars will be parked along Rothwell Road and on Piercing
Hill, creating dangers. The Hill is very busy and has had many accidents. Children walk to the
village, and with increased traffic | feel that the rights of children to walk in a safe manner will be
impared. This development could establish a precedent and affect utilities, with the prospect of
flooding a high probability.

35 PIERCING HILL — This will set an unwanted precedent, and will degenerate village life. There
is inadequate parking, causing overspill onto the Hill, which is narrow and unsuitable for parking.
Parking area will be lit and am concerned about noise and lighting on my property. Expect the
units will attract “first time buyers”, leading to multiple occupancy of units. If each had their own
vehicle it would be terrible. Parked cars would block access for emergency services. The junction
is an accident area, and extra use will increase the risk. There are drainage issues relating to
flooding. Water pressure is extremely low. Number of units an overdevelopment, larger units would
be more in keeping, reducing need for parking. Parking will cause noise and disturbance from
overhead lighting.

39 PIERCING HILL — Object. Concerned that parking area next to my house will become an
overspill car park for the apartments. Also concerned that traffic will be a danger to my family and
the people who use the forest. There should be more parking or less flats. Water pressure is low,
and developers need to address this.

28 PIERCING HILL (Further representation) — Excessive number of units which is out of character.
Stress on utilities; flooding; drainage and water pressure. Hazard resulting from traffic and parked
cars. Do not want to think of consequences of accidents linked to EFDC decision.

31 PIERCING HILL — Concerns with errors on application forms relating to loss of dwellings and
lopping of trees. Do not want errors made that cannot be revoked (e.g. Parsonage golf). Will the
grounds have their use changed as well? Feel that had Wansfell remained as a private house it
would not have been extended. Would | be allowed to extend my property resulting in
disproportionate additions and then subdivide it into flats? Will permitted development rights be
removed, so that it cannot be extended? Concerned about it setting a precedent. Concerned about
impact on rural character of Piercing Hill. Are the extensions wholly necessary for the development
to proceed? At least three, two on my southern boundary and one to the rear will create an
overlooking problem. An extension of three storeys will be near to my conservatory. | already lose
light from this building. Frosted windows are not in keeping with normal living. | would request that
if permission is granted a condition be imposed that these 12 panes are not removed or

Page 57



exchanged for clear glass at any time, and all the windows that overlook my property. Units are too
small - would it pass a fire safety inspection and will units have NHBC certificates? Basement will
flood, and the college will be overdeveloped. We do not need more housing. Do not want to live in
a road with more parking problems. Development will add to traffic and parking pressures.
Subdivision is contrary to DBE11; will create an undesirable precedent, cause disturbance, will
overlook us (the fact college rooms overlook us cannot be compared as all residents had to be in
bed by 11pm and were considerate). Loss of garden will occur. There will be excessive traffic
generation, and the access is dangerous. The area has frequent accidents and there will be added
danger to road users. Do not want damage to road to occur from contractors. Junctions with the
main road are very poor. Car parking spaces are inadequate. Amenity space is inadequate. There
will be noise coming from the flats. What is to stop obscure windows being replaced? Local Plan
DBE9 does not permit windows in the side elevation where this is on a side boundary. |
understand the velux windows can overlook my garden and | feel that all windows should be
obscure and non opening. Also concerned about whether | will have to remove my hedges due to
high hedges legislation. Will refuse storage be sufficient? The bike storage area may create noise
to my property. Affordable housing should be provided. Parking area is inadequate, and too rigid
an application of parking standards raises issues of on-street parking and safety. The slip road
does not have the opportunity to accommodate this excessive development. Long distance to the
back entrance of the college will cause crime. Development contrary to DBE6 as cars would
dominate the slip road. Will the car park be lit, as this may affect wildlife? U3 states that
development should not increase flooding; we are in a floodplain, development will increase load
on drains. Concerned about impact on SSSI; previous consent required that no materials be
stored near the SSSI, will this be imposed on this proposal? Concerned about the access way and
cars passing and turning. Car parking was not allowed near the building on the previous 1998
consent for a lay-by “to enable the free flow of traffic through the site in the interests of amenity to
residents”. Why has car parking been proposed here? My garden has natural springs and land
drains, to which | have right to access. Will this be a condition? Concerned about insurance status
of the building currently. Some dwellings in the road have bats; perhaps they are in the roof. The
grounds are not maintained, and no regard has been shown to trees. Do not want No. 30A to be
demolished. Why is so much land required for a 4 bed dwelling?

31 PIERCING HILL (Further representation) — There would not be harm to the Green Belt.
Similarly | do not raise objection to the relocation of parking. | am concerned about overlooking.
The use of obscure glass for the lower half of windows may be acceptable for bedrooms, but |
guestion the effectiveness for living areas. | hope | will be allowed to revise my own extension
proposals to mitigate the impact on our private zone. Feel that a smaller scheme would generate
less activity and have less need for car parking. We have water pressure issues. Will the car park
be lit? Low profile lights would seem acceptable. Parking spaces seem tight. | hope trees and
garden will be managed accordingly.

32 PIERCING HILL — Proposal is too large a development. Parking is insufficient, and
infrastructure unable to cope with extra traffic and parking. There have been accidents and am
concerned about the impact on safety. Water pressure is an issue, and | don’t want to se this set
as a precedent. The caretaker’'s house should not be demolished, to propose an erection further
towards the forest and in the openness of the green belt is totally against government, county and
local policies. Strongly oppose the overdevelopment that is out of keeping. | opposed the previous
extensions and no more should occur. | am worried about overlooking and noise from flats. Car
movements will increase, as will on-street parking. | am worried about road safety for my wife who
walks to post letters. Concerned about setting a precedent. Do not see why the caretaker’s house
needs to be demolished; there are existing car parks. Concerned about effect of lighting on the
forest.

36 PIERCING HILL — 1) Inappropriate overdevelopment. 2) Common grounds are too small, and
insufficient parking spaces are proposed, causing on-street parking that will be a hazard. 3)

Page 58



Junctions are already dangerous. 4) Water pressure is an issue. 5) Will set a dangerous
precedent.

CONSERVATORS OF EPPING FOREST — Believe that provision of parking is too low and will
cause roadside parking to the detriment of the area. Believe that the Conservators would, in
principle be opposed to this application.

45 FOREST DRIVE — Overdevelopment of site to the detriment of the area. Will increase on street
parking and cause problems of traffic flow. This will set a precedent and would destroy the
character of the village forever.

32 HEATH DRIVE - Building is on green belt land, and would set a precedent for other similar
applications. It would add to traffic congestion, which is bad enough as it is.

33 PIERCING HILL — Errors on application forms regarding demolition and landscaping. Object. 1)
Overdevelopment of the site. It will nearly treble the population of the road. Many cars will be
brought and will add more danger. Not enough parking, add to on-street pressure. Lighting and
noise will affect us. There will be risks to safety. The access way is not wide enough. 2) Low water
pressure issue. 3) Object to further extensions which fly in the face of the Redeposit's 40%. Will it
set a precedent for future extensions? 4) Development will have detrimental effect on our property
and to our neighbours. We will get more noise, more vehicles, less road safety and more light
pollution. It would fundamentally and negatively change our environment.

PARISH COUNCIL — There should not be a reduction in the number of flats to 15 as the developer

will then have the opportunity to seek permission to build low cost housing elsewhere in the
garden, which is in green belt, using the argument it is to conform to H6A of the Redeposit.

Page 59



The matenal contained i this plot has been reproduced
from an Crdnance Survey mep with the permission of the

GonlioBze of Her Majesty's Slabonery. (o) Cooan Sogyilght.

Unautharized repreduction imfiinges Crown Capytight and
iy lead to presecution o clvil procesdings,
EFDC licernse Mo, 100018634

ltem No: 5
Scale: 1:2500

Page 60




Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/2031/05

SITE ADDRESS: Former caretakers house

(Wansfell College)
30A Piercing Hill
Theydon Bois

PARISH:

Theydon Bois

APPLICANT:

Mr J Cooper

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Outline application for the erection of replacement dwelling on

plot 30a Piecing Hill.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT
CONDITIONS:
1 Application for the approval of details reserved by this permission must be made not

later than the expiration of three years from the date of this notice. The
development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of two
years from the date of the final approval of the details reserved by this permission
or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last matter
approved.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans
received on 8 December 2005 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.

The development hereby permitted shall only be carried out in accordance with
detailed plans and particulars which shall have been previously submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall show the
siting, design, external appearance of the building, landscaping and means of
access thereto.

Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such
approved details.

Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and
maintained in the agreed positions.

Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site.

Page 61




Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of
Part 1, Classes A and E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of
the Local Planning Authority.

No development shall take place on site, including site clearance, tree works,
demolition, storage of materials or other preparatory work, until all details relevant to
the retention and protection of trees, hereafter called the Arboricultural Method
Statement, have been submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in
writing. Thereafter the development shall be undertaken only in accordance with the
approved details, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written
consent to any variation.

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include a tree protection plan to show the
areas designated for the protection of trees, shrubs and hedges, hereafter referred
to as Protection Zones. Unless otherwise agreed, the Protection Zones will be
fenced, in accordance with the British Standard Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations (BS.5837:2005) and no access will be permitted for any
development operation.

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include all other relevant details, such as
changes of level, methods of demolition and construction, the materials, design and
levels of roads, footpaths, parking areas and of foundations, walls and fences. It
shall also include the control of potentially harmful operations, such as burning, the
storage, handling and mixing of materials, and the movement of people or
machinery across the site, where these are within 10m of any designated Protection
Zone.

The fencing, or other protection which is part of the approved Statement shall not be
moved or removed, temporarily or otherwise, until all works, including external works
have been completed and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials removed
from the site.

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall indicate the specification and timetable of
any tree works, which shall be in accordance with the British Standard
Recommendations for Tree Works (BS.3998: 1989).

The Arboricultural Method Statement shall include a scheme for the inspection and
supervision of the tree protection measures. The scheme shall be appropriate to the
scale and duration of the works and may include details of personnel induction and
awareness of arboricultural matters; identification of individual responsibilities and
key personnel; a statement of delegated powers; frequency, dates and times of
inspections and reporting, and procedures for dealing with variations and incidents.
The scheme of inspection and supervision shall be administered by a suitable
person, approved by the local planning authority but instructed by the applicant.

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) have
been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and these
works shall be carried out as approved. These details shall include, as appropriate,
and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels
or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle artefacts and
structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below
ground. Details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or

Page 62



10

11

establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants,
including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers / densities where appropriate.
If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed,
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall
be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written
consent to any variation.

No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work,
until all details relevant to the implementation of hard and soft landscape works and
tree planting, hereafter called the Landscape Method Statement, have been
submitted to the LPA, and the development shall not commence until the Landscape
Method Statement has been approved by the LPA in writing. All landscape works
shall be undertaken in accordance with the approved details, unless the LPA has
given its prior written consent to any variation.

The Landscape Method Statement shall include as appropriate, protection of the
planting areas, where appropriate by fencing, during construction; preparation of the
whole planting environment, particularly to provide adequate drainage; and the
provision which is to be made for weed control, plant handling and protection,
watering, mulching, and the staking, tying and protection of trees. The Landscape
Method Statement shall also normally include provision for maintenance for the
period of establishment, including weeding, watering and formative pruning, and the
removal of stakes and ties. Provision shall be made for replacement of any plant,
including replacements, that are removed, are uprooted, or which die or fail to thrive,
for a period of five years from their planting, in the first available season and at the
same place, with an equivalent plant, unless the LPA has given its prior written
consent to any variation.

All hard and soft landscape works shall be completed prior to the occupation or use
of any part of the development, unless the LPA has given its prior written consent to
a programme of implementation. The hard and soft landscape works, including tree
planting, shall be carried out strictly in accordance with any approved timetable.

The Landscape Method Statement shall state the provision which is to be made for
supervision of the full programme of works, including site preparation, planting,
subsequent management and replacement of failed plants.

Before the occupation or use of any phase or part of the development, whichever is
the soonest, a Landscape Management Plan (LMP) shall be submitted to and
approved by the LPA.

The LMP shall contain a statement of the long-term aims and objectives covering all
elements of the implementation of the agreed landscape scheme and full details of
all management and establishment operations over a five-year period, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA. It shall also include details of the relevant
management, and supervisory responsibilities.

The LMP shall also include provision for a review to be undertaken before the end of
the five year period. A revised LMP shall be submitted for the agreement of the LPA
before five years has expired. The revised details shall make similar provisions for
the long term maintenance and management of the landscape scheme. The revised
scheme shall also make provision for revision and updating.

Page 63



The provisions of the LMP, and subsequent revisions shall be adhered to and any
variation shall have been agreed beforehand in writing by the LPA. No trees,
shrubs, hedges or other plants shall be removed for the duration of the Landscape
Management Scheme or it revisions, without the prior written approval of the LPA.
Any trees, shrubs, hedges or other plants being so removed shall be replaced in the
first available planting season by an equivalent replacement or replacements to the
satisfaction of the LPA. Management of the landscape scheme in accordance with
the LMP or their agreed revisions shall not cease before the duration of the use of
the development unless agreed in writing by the LPA.

12 A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority prior to commencement of the development. The assessment shall
demonstrate compliance with the principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems
(SuDS). The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the first occupation of
the building hereby approved and shall be adequately maintained.

13 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface
materials for the driveway, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The agreed surface treatment shall be completed prior to the
first occupation of the development.

14 All construction/demolition work and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries
and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

15 No construction or preparatory work shall commence on site until the dwelling
known as "Woodview" 30A Piercing Hill has been demolished and all materials
removed from the site.

16 No work shall be undertaken to the access way to the car parking area (known as
"Rothwell Road" without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Description of Proposal:

This is an outline application for the erection of a replacement dwelling in lieu of No. 30A Piercing
Hill (the “former Caretaker’'s house”), which is to be demolished in order to provide a car park in
conjunction with the proposed conversion of the former Wansfell College (submitted concurrently
with this application). All matters are reserved.

Description of Site:

The site is located to the rear of Wansfell College and comprises part of its former grounds. It is
located at the end of an access road (“Rothwell Road”), which is accessed off the western side of
the “slip road” part of Piercing Hill. The existing 30A (“Woodview”) is located outside of this
application site and is to the rear of the main building line of Piercing Hill. Car parking areas to the
college are located near to Woodview, and also in the grounds to the rear of the plot of No. 28A.

Page 64



Although out of the application site, the site contains extensive grounds that lie to the rear of Nos.
31 to 34, which include tennis courts and a Locally Listed pergola, and features many preserved
trees. The entire site is within the Green Belt, and is adjacent to Epping Forest.

Relevant History:

CC/EPF/13/87 (County Council Ref) — Change of use of outbuildings to Principals residence with
addition of conservatory.
Granted permission by the County Council on 1/12/87.

Policies Applied:

Core Strategy, Countryside and Housing Provision Palicies from the Essex and Southend on Sea
Replacement Structure Plan:-

CS2 — Protecting the natural and built environment.

C2 — Development within the Metropolitan Green Belt.

H3 — Location of Residential Development.

Green Belt, Residential Development and Landscaping Policies from Epping Forest District
Council’'s Adopted Local Plan:-

GB2 - Development within the Metropolitan Green Belt.

GB4 — Extensions to residential curtilages.

GB15 — Replacement of existing permanent dwellings in the Green Belt.
DBE1 — Design of new structures.

DBE2 - Effect of new structures on neighbourhood.

DBE4 — New buildings in the Green Belt.

DBE9 — Amenity considerations.

LL10 — Retention of trees.

LL11 — Provision of landscaping.

T14 — Provision of off-street car parking.

T17 — Highway safety.

Core Policy, Green Belt and Sustainable Transport Policies from Epping Forest District Council's
Local Plan Alterations (not adopted, but a material consideration in determining this application):-
CP1 — Achieving sustainable development objectives.

CP2 — Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment.

GB2A — Development within the Metropolitan Green Belt.

GB4 — Extensions to residential curtilages.

GB15A — Replacement dwellings

ST4 — Highway safety.

ST6 — Vehicle parking

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues with this application relate to the appropriateness of re-locating and replacing the
dwelling in terms of the green belt, the effect of this on the character of the area and neighbouring
properties, as well as any highway concerns.

1. Green Belt considerations.

Green Belt Policies permit the replacement of an existing dwelling on a one for one basis providing
(amongst other criteria) the replacement is not materially larger than that which it would replace.

Page 65



Given this proposal is all matters reserved outline (and the footprint shown is purely indicative), it
is not possible to make a judgement on the size, scale and massing of the replacement dwelling at
this stage. Such control can be had during a reserved matters application, were this proposal
approved. In terms of the pure principle of demolition and re-location, this is considered acceptable
under green belt policy. Any future application that seeks to enlarge the building over and above
the existing No. 30A will have to be assessed on its individual merits at a later stage.

The proposal shows a curtilage that is larger than that which serves the original No. 30A (which is
of a small size). The new curtilage provides a residential site area of 1,378 square metres. Whilst
this sounds large, its size is directly comparable to (and is indeed smaller than many) existing
surrounding properties. The position of the curtilage is roughly in line with the rear edge of that
serving Nos. 28 and 28A. Since no further expanse of residential curtilage is proposed to the rural
grounds that were associated with the former college (that lie to the rear of properties in Piercing
Hill), this is considered to be acceptable. The withdrawal of permitted development rights for
extensions and outbuildings will prevent further additional built development taking place without
the consent of the Local Planning Authority. In the terms of the green belt, no issues will arise.

2. Effect of the development on the character of the area

This development is located to the rear of the main established building line of Piercing Hill.
Ordinarily such a development may be resisted (in another location), but an existing property is
currently in situ as are several other examples of backland style development in the surrounding
area. Given appropriate design, siting, size and massing (which would be controlled under a
reserved matters application), a development on this site would not appear unusual to the
character of the surroundings.

Although the existing No. 30A is an attractive cottage style property, the site is not located within a
conservation area, nor is the property statutorily or locally listed. Conservation officers do not
object to the loss of this property. An architecturally significant pergola to the rear of the site, which
has been added to the draft local list will remain unaffected by the proposal, and given appropriate
landscaping the new property will respect its wider rural setting.

3. Effect on neighbouring properties

Since the full details of the replacement dwelling are not under consideration, it is not possible to
fully assess the impact on neighbours in terms of visual prominence and overlooking. The
separation that exists between the site and the nearest dwelling (No. 28A) is such that it is unlikely
to pose loss of light or overlooking. Full details would be assessed during the reserved matters
stage.

4. Highway and other considerations.

The issues regarding the access (“Rothwell”) road are largely the same as those considered under
the application for the conversion of the college building. The addition of one residential dwelling is
not considered to either give rise to excess traffic movements or be detrimental to highway safety.
Layout and car parking would be considered under a reserved matters application. Although the
access road is not part of the application site, it is owned by the applicant and the provision of a
lay-by near to the college building will also serve as a passing place that would be used by
occupiers of this dwelling.

Whilst a significant level of concern has been raised regarding rights of way to the forest, this is
not a planning consideration.

Page 66



Conclusion

In principle the relocation and enlargement of residential curtilage is considered acceptable,
primarily due to the character of the surrounding area. The full details of a new dwelling would be
subject to scrutiny and another application, thereby ensuring that appropriate built form that will not
unduly affect neighbouring amenity will be provided on the site.

The application is recommended for approval.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

PARISH COUNCIL — Objection. We strongly object to erection of a new property in the green belt
under Green Belt Policy PPG2, which only allows new development in the Green Belt under
special circumstances. We see no special circumstances that would be applicable in this case.
The plans show the location of the of the new property to be further into the Green Belt causing
loss of virgin Green belt which we consider to be totally unnecessary. The plans indicated that the
area covered by the new property will be larger than the present dwelling. Policy GB15A(i) of the
Local Plan states that any replacement dwelling should “not be materially greater in volume than
that which it replaces.” Given the increase in area there will be a significant increase in volume and
therefore should not be permitted. We would also like to draw attention to the precedent set by
EFDC of rejecting previous applications for development of coach-houses, stables and other
similar buildings contained within the boundaries of other Piercing Hill properties abutting the
forest. In addition to objecting to the proposed loss of green belt land we have particular concern
as to the justification or suitability of new development adjacent to the forest. We note that in the
Application For Permission to carry out Development Under the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 form, the applicant makes no reference to the demolition of Woodview and, in fact states that
no residential units will be lost through demolition (Question 7). We note that Rothwell Road is not
included in the planning application. Access is integral to planning permission being granted and
this is a single track road which is inappropriate access for the proposed density of two properties
and twenty flats (see also EPF/2030/05). Although on the plan Rothwell Road is marked as ‘new
access to new plot 30a’ it is not included in these plans or for the plans EPF/2030/05, it is merely
marked as a hashed area outside the red/blue lines indicating the land affected by the
applications. This lane is adjoined by an ancient ditch which is essential for local drainage. We feel
it is essential that clear plans for this access are submitted as part of any revised application.

32 THEYDON PARK ROAD: Object. Change of use will increase road traffic in an accident
blackspot.

26 PIERCING HILL — No objection to the erection of a replacement dwelling on the existing plot,
however | would object to an increase in size or change in the position. The location of the
dwelling within a rural environment and its close proximity to the forest, wild life and to the quality
of life appropriate to walkers and horses.

59 WOODLAND GROVE, EPPING — Application needs much studying to ensure that future of
Theydon Bois is not at risk. Outbuildings attached and in the grounds of the college are not shown,
meaning the application is incomplete and unacceptable. Not reasonable to demolish a property to
accommodate limited parking. Should be a guarantee that works do not further damage the shrubs
and trees. A time limit to complete redevelopment should be considered.

ESSEX GARDENS TRUST — Wansfell College gardens contain the remains of a Victorian garden

with pathways, mature trees, pond with island, oriental style pavilion, and restored lean-to, green
house and donkey shed.

Page 67



68 FOREST DRIVE — Object strongly. 1) Overdevelopment and intensification of existing building
into out of character accommodation in a small residential area of larger homes. Would set a
damaging precedent to the village. 2) Limited off-street parking close to an accident black spot at
the junction of Piercing Hill and Coppice Row. Believe that these applications are submitted by the
same company for Parsonage golf course. Do not believe this developer should be trusted.

CAMPAIGN TO PROTECT RURAL ESSEX — Redevelopment appears to have a larger footprint
than that to be demolished, which is not permitted. As GB15A states the volume should not be
materially larger the footprint and volume should be available for comparison.

29 PIERCING HILL — Object. Not clear from the plans exactly where the building is to be erected.
See no reason why the existing house should be demolished and a new one located in
undeveloped grounds. The present building relates well to the area and a building elsewhere will
be inconsistent with the established pattern of development. College already has parking

THEYDON BOIS AND DISTRIC RURAL PRESERVATION SOCIETY - Building will be moved
further into the grounds and would appear to be larger than the existing. Contrary to PPG2 and
GB15A. Access would be via the same road and there would be constant backing up of vehicles
causing hazards to safety. Nothing indicated about future of remaining grounds

28A PIERCING HILL — Object. The plan to widen the road is incomplete. If this goes ahead, it will
pave over the ditch that takes drainage from the forest. This will increase risks of flooding. We
would lose a substantial piece of the parking we now enjoy. Worried about setting a precedent.

2A ELIZABETH DRIVE - | feel this would in ho way benefit the village. It would be a violation of
green belt land through its modern style and needless development for the reason for individual
profit of developers, and in no way would enhance the village character.

15 PIERCING HILL — | object.

34 PIERCING HILL — Object .1) 5.5 acres of land provide a sufficient area of car park without
demolishing No. 30A. 2) Application should confirm the exact position, whether any extensions will
be made to the dwelling, the exact area of garden, access will be via Rothwell Road. 3) Gardens
are green belt and no land should be built on 4) Want confirmation that replacement dwelling will
not interfere with access to Rothwell Road of the Fire Services or all those who have a right of
way.

3A PIERCING HILL — Object. Concern is that access is on an already dangerous section or road
with an accident record. 26 vehicles will increase traffic. Provision of footpaths is poor,
development will increase number of accidents.

ROTHWELL, PIERCING HILL — Application is contrary to Green Belt Policy and should be
refused. Many applications for extensions encroaching the Green Belt that have been rejected,
Here the applicant is wishing to build totally anew and cannot see why he can't build on the
existing site.

27A PIERCING HILL — Have no objection but it would be reassuring to know that this will not be
further developed in the future.

35 PIERCING HILL — Cannot see why people would purchase a property off the access road. One
should assume that the property will be developed within the grounds. What will happen to the
remaining grounds. Feel that access may be from my line, which would be totally unacceptable to
me.

Page 68



28 PIERCING HILL — Strongly object. Contrary to PPG2. Will be in a more elevated position that
will give it a full view of the rear of my property. | will lose privacy. Would point out precedent of
EFDC rejecting development of garages. | have already been denied access to my right of way to
the forest. Application makes no reference o the demolition of 30A. Am aware of flawed decisions
by EFDC. Feel that the present property should be left intact.

PARISH COUNCIL (Amended Plans) — No further comments to make but reiterate earlier
concerns.

36A PIERCING HILL — Object — 1) Development uses only a small area of the grounds, what
happens to the rest. Further development would set a risky precedent. 2) Would object most
strongly to access being along the existing track beside our house (Forest Road). The condition of
the track is poor and could not support contractor’s vehicles.

35 PIERCING HILL — Cannot comprehend why demolition of the existing cottage has been
requested. Appears to be close to the existing cottage so why does it have to be moved. If it is
because it would be too close to the new parking allocated for the units in the main building that is
not sufficient grounds. Concerned as to what will happen to the remaining garden. Hope it is kept
as a garden. Development should be in keeping with surroundings.

ROTHWELL, PIERCING HILL (Further representation) — Concern is change to highways. Plan is
unclear, Proposed plan impinges on the frontage of our property and would affect parking, safety
and our property value. Rothwell Road has historic value and making it two way would destroy
character of the road. See no reason why this would need to be altered for the plan. The drainage
ditch would be affected, as would trees. Object to building on virgin Green Belt.

28 PIERCING HILL — Do not want an application that contains errors approved by the Committee.
Would vehemently oppose the movement of the footprint of the existing buildings since the rest of
the grounds are considerably higher in elevation than my own garden and a new dwelling would
completely remove my privacy.

29 PIERCING HILL — Object. 1) See no reason for the demolition of the cottage; there is ample
parking on site. 2) Works to Rothwell Road would mean elimination of our brook and destruction of
trees. A previous permission (CC/EPF/102/98) should be studies by EFDC. Without trees there will
be no visual protection from NO. 30. 3) No mention of the side gate from our garden. Previous
1998 consent states that any use of layby other than for setting down and picking up purposes is
not allowed. Also this states that no materials should be stored, assembled or deposited between
the SSSI and a line 30 metres to the east. The conditions seem important to this application.

31 PIERCING HILL — | am opposed to this application. Cannot see any very special circumstances
to make way for a car park when there is ample parking already. See complications in moving the
house towards the forest. Cannot see any other appropriate position to the house that would not
impose on neighbours. Should stay where it is. Reserved matters would require careful review.
What will happen to the remaining land? Permitted development rights should be withdrawn.
Developer wishes to construct access over the ditch that drains the forest. Concerned as we are in
the floodplain. Loss of tree will cause loss of amenity to Nos. 28, 28A and 29.

32 PIERCING HILL — Would oppose the new building and feel strongly that a Victorian Coach
House dating 1890s should not be demolished for a car park. An old coach house at the rear of
No. 33 was refused for redevelopment. Would be concerned if more buildings would encroach on
open land. Worried about overlooking from more houses. Development over a watercourse may
well cause flooding. Concerned about extra traffic. Will remove the openness of the green belt.
The footprint appears larger, the gardens look larger, would like outbuildings restricted. What will
happen to the grounds? Why was no mention made about the works to Rothwell Road? What is
happening to the trees in Rothwell Road? How will surface water be removed and how would more

Page 69



land be taken away to make an adopted road? Loss of amenity to No. 28A. Why has developer
submitted outline application when CC/EPF/102/98 states restrictions 30 metres east of the forest
boundary? Cannot see that the developer has allowed a footpath to the back entrance of the
building. Will residents walk along an unlit road, what about road safety? Will there be provision for
street lighting? This would cause light pollution. What about the existing outbuildings within the
grounds, will there be restrictions on these?

31 PIERCING HILL (Further representation) — Errors on application forms regarding demolition
and lopping/felling trees. Am opposed to loss of land within the green belt. Cannot see that this
represents very special circumstances; loss of a coach house to make way for a car park just
slightly closer to the college building than the original ones. Concerned about final position of
house and may end up nearer the forest, particularly as a restriction on CC/EPF/102/98 was 30
metres east of the boundary. As the cottage has been extended since 1948, will any further
extensions be granted that make a replacement materially larger? Would permitted development
rights be removed? Any position within the site would be more imposing than the current creation,
more imposing and create overlooking. Are there special circumstances to warrant enlarging the
curtilage? Why does this not adjoin the Wansfell site? Current wooden hut has never been lived in
and is a garage with room above and no services except electricity. The Pagoda is not listed. What
is to occur with the remainder of the site? The road is not in the application site and proposal to
widen it should not be included. | have problems with natural springs, and Wansfell takes a lot of
water from the forest, which runs into the ditch. Concerned about flooding. Do not want trees
removed, and the construction of a road to the boundary will result in this. Why can’t the current
car parks be used in this development? If the car parks are lit | would worry as to the effect this
would have on wildlife. Right of way into the woods has been taken away.

36 PIERCING HILL — Objections. 1) What will happen to the remaining land? Development here
would set a dangerous precedent. 2) Would strongly object to any access over the existing track at
the side of my house. Would ask that development is in keeping with the surrounding area.

33 PIERCING HILL — Object. Errors on application form. Object for following reasons: 1) Car park
will require lighting that will be intrusive. 2) Car park will introduce more noise than we are used to.
3) Moving the property nearer the forest impinges on Green Belt land adjacent to Epping Forest. 4)
Outline plan indicates that dwelling will be larger, against GB15A. 5) Concerned about the access
and implications on drainage gully. Adequate parking exists for a smaller number of flats, so
knocking down a perfectly good building is wrong. If you grant permission for this development it
paves the way for the 2030 application to be approved. What are the plans for the remainder of the
grounds? Recent refusals set precedents and it would be wholly undesirable if this were approved.

CONSERVATORS OF EPPING FOREST - As this application is in outline only it is not possible to
consider the full impact that a new building in this location might have on the interests of the
adjoining Special Area of Conservation. | believe that the Conservators would, in principle be
opposed to this application.

THEYDON BOIS AND DISTRICT RURAL PRESERVATION SOCIETY — The alteration of the red
line does not alter the original views of the society. This large area of grounds contains many
protected trees is the one closest to the forest and the SSSIs needing most protection from
development. Whatever the outcome of this proposal no further development should be allowed.
The plans indicate the alteration of the existing access. Concerned about constant backing up of
vehicles. Application appears to widen the access which is not in the ownership of the applicant
and would be a further intrusion of green belt. Society is of the view that the development should
be scaled back as it does not comply with the local plan or PPG2. Any applications that are
granted should seek the protection and prevention of further development of the grounds close to
the forest.

Page 70



45 FOREST DRIVE — Overdevelopment of site to the detriment of the area. Will increase on street
parking and cause problems of traffic flow. This will set a precedent and would destroy the
character of the village forever.

Page 71



The matenal contained i this plot has been reproduced
from an Crdnance Survey mep with the permission of the
GonlioBze of Her Magesty™s Slabonery. (o) Coown Cogyiight.
Unautharized repraduction infinges Crown Capytight and
iy lead to presacition o il procesdings,

EFDC license Mo, 100018634

Page 72

Scale: 1:2500




Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No:

EPF/2106/05

SITE ADDRESS:

2 Morgan Crescent

Theydon Bois
Epping
Essex

CM16 7DX

PARISH:

Theydon Bois

APPLICANT:

Mr & Mrs Caira

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: | Two storey side extension and part two and part single storey

rear extensions.

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT
CONDITIONS:

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of
three years beginning with the date of this notice.

2 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window
openings in the first floor flank elevation of the development hereby approved shall
be fitted with obscured glass, and shall be permanently retained in that condition.

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match
those of the existing building.

4 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the building
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

5 A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning

Authority prior to commencement of the development. The assessment shall
demonstrate compliance with the principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems
(SuDS). The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the first occupation of
the building hereby approved and shall be adequately maintained.

Description of Proposal:

It is proposed to erect a two storey side extension to this semi-detached house.

At the side, the proposed extension would be some 2.9m wide. Both its ground and first floor
frontages would be set back from the existing front wall of the house. At the rear, the extension
would project about 2.8m beyond the rear elevation of the house; its ground floor part would be

Page 73




sited on the boundary with no 4, but its first floor part would be sited some 5m from that boundary.
It would be finished in a mixture of hipped and gabled roofs.

Description of Site:

The application site lies within the built up area of Theydon Bois, in a residential neighbourhood. It
is occupied by a two-storey semi detached house, finished in white pebble dashed walls and a
plain tiled roof.

Building lines with the attached house to the north west, no 4, are generally uniform. The
southeast boundary of the site abuts the end of rear gardens of houses in Orchard Drive.

Relevant History:

None.

Policies Applied:

DBE9 - Impact of New Development
DBE10 — Residential Extensions

Issues and Considerations:

The main issues in this application are the effect of the development on the amenities of
neighbouring residential properties, and on the character and appearance of the existing building
and the street scene.

The bulk of the side extension would be largely hidden from the adjoining house at no 4. The
single storey element at the rear would not exceed the projection of an existing ground floor
extension at no 4. The first floor rear part would project some 2.8m beyond the rear wall of that
adjoining dwelling but at a distance of some 5m. Moreover, the proposed extension would be
sited about 20m from the rear of the nearest house in Orchard Drive. Having regard to these
matters, it is considered that the development will maintain an adequate separation to
neighbouring houses. The only first floor flank windows proposed would serve bathrooms and as
such they can be obscure glazed to prevent any undue overlooking of houses in Orchard Drive.
Therefore, it is considered that the development would not harm the amenities of neighbouring
residential properties and that it complies with policy DBESO.

The proposed extensions have an unusual design, particularly noticeable when viewed from the
front. However, there are large side dormer windows at both nos. 4 and 6, which are more
conspicuous features, and as such, in this context, the overall appearance of the development is
considered acceptable. The side extension would be sited very close to the southwestern flank
boundary of the site. However, that boundary borders rear gardens, and therefore it would
maintain an adequate visual separation with the houses in Orchard Drive. Moreover, the frontage
of the extension is set back from the existing front building line by a significant amount. As a
result, it is considered that the extension would not appear as a cramped or intrusive feature in the
locality. Therefore, it is considered that the development would not harm the character and
appearance of the existing building and the street scene, and that it complies with policy DBE9.

Page 74



Conclusion:

The provisions of the relevant local plan policies are met and approval is recommended.

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:

PARISH COUNCIL — Objection: We are concerned that this extension goes up to the boundary.

Page 75



Village Hal
e

.'n' =

The matenial contained i this plot has been reproduced
from an Crdnance Survey mep with the permission of the

GonlioBze of Her Majesty's Slabonery. (o) Cooan Sogyilght.

Unautharized repreduction imfiinges Crown Capytight and
ray lead to presecution o civil procesdings,
EFDC licernse Mo, 100018634

Iltem No: 7
Scale: 1:1250

Page 76




